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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT AWARDED
For the Year Ended September 30, 2001

The Government Finance Officers dssociation of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the City of Holly Hill, Florida, for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2001.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit
must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards.
Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We
believe our curremt report continues to conform to Certificate of
Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA

to determine its eligibility for another certificate.






CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Certiticate of
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for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Holly Hill,
Florida

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2001

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement

- systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs} achieve the highest
standards in government accounting

and financial reporting.
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Honorable Mayor Arthur, and

Members of the City Commission
City of Holly Hill, Florida

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Holly Hill, Florida, for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002, is hereby submitted pursuant to the City Charter, Florida Statutes,
and Chapters 10.500 and 11.45, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and faimess of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the government. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operation of the various funds and
account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain -an
understanding of the City's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and compliance. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the City's
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general
purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules, as well as the auditors’ report on the financial statements and
schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis.

The City is required to make the determination whether the audit of the City’s participation in
federal awards and state financial assistance projects will be conducted as a single audit in
conformity with the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and Chapter 10.550, Rules
of the Auditor General. Based on the level of expenditures directly related to federal award
programs and state financial assistance projects, the City was required to have its September 30,
2002 fiscal year end audit conducted as a single audit for federal program purposes only.
Accordingly, there are supplementary reports and a schedule of expenditures of federal awards
relative to a single audit presented in the last section of this report. In addition, supplementary
information is provided in relation to the reporting requirements of the Rules of the Auditor
General for federal awards and are also presented in the last section of this report.

This report includes all funds and account groups of the City. The City provides a full range of
municipal services contemplated by statute or character. They include law enforcement and fire
protection, development services, sanitation and solid waste control, road and street facilities,
parks and recreation facilities, community redevelopment, and general adminisirative services.

vii
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This report also includes the Community Redevelopment Authority. Since its governing body is the same
as the City’s, and a separate legal entity was not formed with its creation, their financial statements are
included in the City’s general-purpose financial statements as a separate special revenue fund pursuant to
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards No. 14 “The
Financial Reporting Entity.”

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City is located on the eastern end of the Interstate-4 (I-4) corridor, the economic zone of Central Florida
that roughly follows I-4 from Tampa through Orlando to the communities along the Atlantic coast in Volusia
County,

Growth along the I-4 corridor has been exceptional and is expected to continue. Growth in the City has been
favorable during the past year but is expected to slow because of current economic conditions affecting the
state and the nation, However, opportunities for additional growth still exist in an already dynamic business
and industrial community. Growth has remained steady at an average 2% per year for the last several years.
Due to limited availability of vacant land parcels and other resources the City encourages new and expanded
business development on a business-by-business basis and by assisting the owners wherever possible in
overcoming obstacles. Property valuations increased during the past year by 3.5%. The population increased
by 3% due to the completion of a new affordable housing complex in early 2002. The community currently
has a 5.3% unemployment rate which is the same as the statewide rate of 5.3%.

Growth trends and their challenge to government are expected to continue. Maintaining service delivery to

the residential and business community continues to require fresh approaches and examination of established
practices to obtain and manage resources to meet those challenges.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

During the course of the year, the City Commission and staff pursued several major projects and programs.
Among the most significant of those projects were:

1. Public Safety - To enhance public safety in the City, the Police Department has increased drug
enforcement efforts by assigning an investigator to a county task force and four officers have been
trained and quipped to serve as traffic specialists in conjunction with their regular duties. A
Community Action Team has been created, using three positions funded by redevelopment monies.
This effort has enhanced police presence and effort in the redevelopment area. Finally, greater use
of technology has enhanced information flow and report writing quality.

In an effort to provide the highest possible level of fire protection, the City continues
to maintain its first response agreement for structure fires with the City of Ormond Beach, Florida.
This agreement, which serves as a model for all of Volusia County, allows for greater response, at

viii
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minimal cost to both cities. Further, the City has plans to expand the Fire Department and co-locate

additional personnel and equipment in a County fire station, while at the same time increasing the
'y level of fire protection to the northwest portion of the city, an area that has seen increased
5 annexation.

2. Parks and Recreation - Phase III of the Recreation Complex neared completion in September 2002.
New facilities include a wellness center, tennis courts and racquetball courts. The Daytona Beach
Recreation and Racing district provided $150,000 in grant funds toward the construction of these
facilities and Florida Health Care, Inc. Donated the exercise equipment for the wellness center.

In addition, the cities of Holly Hill, Daytona Beach, Ormond Beach and the County of Volusia
opened a 2.7 acre dog facility within the Riviera Oaks Stormwater Park on Alabama Avenue. Pets
are enjoying this unique recreational facility where they can play without the constraint of a leash.

3 Water and Sewer - In late 2002, the City Commission awarded contracts to begin a four-year program
to replace water meters throughout the city with electronic meters that provide greater accuracy in
meter readings. This program, when completed, will reduce personnel expenses and is expected to
increase revenues as well.

4. Public Works - In conjunction with the Florida Department of Transportation’ s widening of Nova
Road from Flomich Street north, the City in 2001, entered into a joint project agreement to relocate
and extend the city’s water lines to provide water service to residents and businesses in that area.
In 2002, as an option, the City decided to have FDOT also install an 8" resuse water main that will
connect with the City of Ormond Beach’s reuse water line for irrigation of the City’s medians on
Nova Road. The FDOT anticipates this project will be completed by November 2003.

5. Stormwater Management - A $4.2 million Stormwater Improvement project funded by the State
Revolving Fund loan program started in late 2001 with the purchase of several properties for
stormwater retention areas. This project is expected to alleviate flooding conditions within several
neighborhoods providing greater protection to lives and properties.

PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE

The city adopted its first Long-Range Goals in February 1995. The goals have been revised and updated over
the years. Goals #1 through #5 are carried over from 1998 and may be modified or contain new items
derived from the 2001 session. The remainder of the goals is completely new or significantly different from
the previous lists of goals. Several areas of progress are noted below.

1. To adopt and implement a plan to redevelop the Tax Increment Financing District — CC-1 Corridor.
U.S.1 (also known as Ridgewood Avenue) is the main artery through the City. Numerous areas have
been upgraded or redeveloped in recent years. The City is committed to continuing this trend.

Ix
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. Business owners are being encouraged to promote sprucing up the district and complying
with codes.

. Revenues generated by the TIF District are being utilized in the form of grants for facade
improvements, tree planting and signage. The community-policing program for the district
is ongoing.

To develop a five-year capital improvements plan. Through the development of and commitment

to the Goals process, the city will continue to support the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan(s).

. Completed plans include stormwater drainage, street paving, sidewalks, median
beautification, multi-purpose recreational facility and vehicle replacement. Additionalplans
for water and sewer renewals and replacements are in process,

To develop a recreation plan. The City Commission supports a strong recreation plan for all
residents. Numerous goals addressing this issue have been accomplished since recreation was

adopted as a major issue in 1995.

. Additional recreational facilities such as tennis and racquetball courts and a wellness center
have been completed. A multi-purpose field, playground and a butterfly garden witha water
feature has been planned with Phase I Centennial Park Improvements in the 2003 budget.

To maintain and improve the “people” environment for the city. The City has instituted policies and
practices to create a better environment for all residents, business owners, staff and visitors in the

City.

. The 4" annual awards dinner for the Employee of the Year, Citizen of the Year and
Business of the Year was held in September 2002, Joint efforts between the city and its
employees and board members, the Chamber of Commerce and the local businesses to
promote communication and understanding is proving to be successful within the
community.

. Enhanced training for staff is being offered to provide quality services. Management staff
is receiving leadership training conducted by the Human Resources Director. A training
room in the police department has been equipped with eight computers allowing for classes
and training to be planned and conducted for all city employees on various subjects as well
as computer software applications.

. Regular programs recognizing all city boards and committees for their efforts have been
established.

To enhance the City’s code enforcement efforts. For the benefit of the residents and businesses, the
Commission recognizes the need to enhance its code enforcement efforts.
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. Combining the animal control and code enforcement officer positions into two community
service officer positions to handle the duties of both have resulted in more cases being
processed in 2002. A decision to appoint special masters o hear difficult cases and levy
fines on those who will not comply should result in greater compliance within the
community. The addition of a full-time housing inspector has been beneficial to the
community since rental properties are being inspected annually and thus, are better
maintained, improving the look of the City.

To maximize the land uses of the City. The City will maximize uses of land within the City’s
boundaries and encourage the annexation of lands adjacent to those boundaries.

. Annexations are encouraged on a parcel-by-parcel basis. Redevelopment of existing
properties is encourage through a property-by-property process and adherence to existing
and/or modified zoning and building regulations.

To upgrade and improve the city’s water and wastewater systems. The Commission recognizes the
necessity of maintaining and improving the water and wastewater infrastructure.

. A four-year plan to replace the City water meters with electronic meters started in late 2002
and is now well underway.

To recognize and promote the historical attributes of the City. Holly Hill has a rich and extensive
history, The Commission is interested in developing a structured process to retain the historical

elements of the City.

. During fiscal year 2001 a Historical Preservation Board was established to inventory the
City’s historical features and to begin developing the historical record for the City. In 2002,
the City entered into a lease agreement with Volusia County for the use of two rooms at the
Halifax Law Center located in Hilly Hill. The rooms will house historical items and will
eventually be opened to the public as 2 museum.

To adopt and implement a plan to redevelop LPGA Boulevard. A long term, concerted effort has
made great strides to improve the economic viability of Ridgewood Avenue. The Commission now
recognizes the need to begin the same effort on LPGA Boulevard.

. Intersection improvements at LPGA Boulevard and U.S. Route No. 1 are underway. The
City Commission intends to adopt a long-term plan to improve the look and economic
viability of LPGA Boulevard.

To be good financial stewards of the City’s funds. The Commission recognizes the need to be
fiscally responsible to the City’s residents, business and property owners, and visitors. This
responsibility includes the need to acquire a reasonable level of funds to accomplish the projects and
programs of the City while not placing too heavy a burden on the taxpayers.

X1
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. The Commission will strive to accomplish the projects and programs of the City within the
property tax rolled-back rate each year.

. The City’s Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 were refunded in 2002 to obtain
lower interest rates. Total savings achieved were $998,613 or $47,500 per year for the next
20 years,

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed
to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes
that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgeting Controls In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the City Commission. Activities of all the governmental and proprietary funds are included in the annual
appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally
exceed the appropriated amount) is established by department or division within an individual fund. The City
also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.

Any unencumbered balance of appropriations shall revert to the General Fund and be subject to future
appropriations. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balance at year end. Budgetary
control is maintained by a constant review of revenues and expenditures by the City Manager and Finance
Director. This budgetary control is communicated to the department heads.

As demonstrated by the financial statements and schedules included in the Financial Section of this
comprehensive annual financial report, the City continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management,

General Government Functions The following schedule presents a summary of governmental fund (General,
Special Revenue, and Capital Projects funds) revenues for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, and
the increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues:

Percent 2002
2002 of Increase
Revenue Source’ Amount Total {Decrease)
T aXS . vttt e e e e e 3 3,669,565 60.1% § (434,952)

Licensesandpermits ..........covovivivene. 247,330 4.0% 5,821

Xii
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Percent 2002
2002 of Increase

Revenue Source Amount Total {Decrease)

Intergovernmental revenue . ... ... ... ... .. ... 1,243,035 20.4% (116,459)
Chargesforservices . ...................... 549,750 9.0% 32,946
Fimes and forfeitures .. ... ... ... ... ... . .. 86,939 1.4% (29,065)
Miscellaneous revenue ... ... ... ... ... ... 310,472 5.1% 70,715
Totals ... . $ 6.107 091 $_(572.166)

Revenues received from governmental fund sources totaled $6,107,091 for the year ended September 30, 2002,
which represents a 8.6% decrease of $572,166 compared to the amount earned in the previous year, as adjusted
for the accrual of non-exchange revenues under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 33, Actual revenues
were slightly less than budgeted revenues by $287,309. The City experienced a decrease in revenue primarily
attributed to a decrease in franchise and utility taxes as a result of a decrease in consumption of the services
providing such revenues from third parties.

Through the prior year the City has experienced steady revenue growth without raising ad-valorem taxes.
In fiscal year 2002 the City adopted a millage rate below the rolled-back rate and below the prior year rate
established for ad valorem taxes. Also, the City adopted an additional fifteen thousand doliar senior citizens
property tax exemption, which became effective in 2002. These factors led to a slight decrease in the ad
valorem taxes eamed during the year.

Ad valorem taxes continue to be the City’s most significant revenuc source. The total non-gxempt valuation
of all real property, subsurface rights, personal property and centrally assessed property subject to ad valorem
taxes amounted to $473 million, an increase of $16 million, or 3.4% over the last year’s $457 million. The
taxabie value for operating millages increased by more than $13.9 miltion in 2002 at $342.4 million compared
to $328.5 million the preceding year.

The decline in current year intergovernmental revenue of $116,459 was due primarily to a decrease in the
amount of federal awards and state financial assistance relating to various grant programs the City is
administering.

The County of Volusia, Florida, is responsible for assessing, billing and collecting the City’s share of ad
valorem taxes in accordance with Florida law. The provisions of Chapter 192, Florida Statutes, controls the
assessments and collections of ad valorem taxes.

The property tax levy during the current year decreased from 5.09007 mills to 4.75000 mills. No ad valorem
tax mullage increase has been implemented in any of the past five consecutive years., A summary of the City’s
millage rates and tax levies for each of the past ten years is presented in Table 4 of the Statistical Section of
this Report.

xiii
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A summary of the individual components of the City’s governmental fund revenues are displayed in the
following graph:
Govermmental Fund Revennes

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

$310,4?:2 [@

o i

& Source of Revenue

| 3,669,565

Taxes
Licenses and Permits

Iniergovernmental

i $1’243’0351 Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeilures

Miscellaneous

Expenditures for the City’s general governmental functions totaled $7,636,217 for 2002, which represents an
merease of $1,065,927 or 16.2% above total expenditures of $6,570,290 last year. Overall, most program
expenditures increased for all major governmental functions. The significant increases in governmental
expenditures 1s attributed to the following:

(1) an increase in general government expenditures of $317,833 primarily attributed to the payment of
$451,418 in water and sewer impact fees in fiscal year 2002 on behalf of the new affordable housing
development that was built in the City a vear ago;

(2) an increase in physical environment expenditures of $325,923 is solely from an increase in the amount
of expenditures for improvements to the Stormwater Drainage Fund projects being funded by proceeds
borrowed from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection with loans from the State Revolving
Fund program,

(3) an increase of $156,732 in transportation expenditures, the majority of which are from capital outlays
improving roads and streets throughout the City; and

(4) an increase in capital outlay from the Capital Projects Fund of $222,235 for construction work-in-
progress as of the end of the year for the wellness center and tennis and racquetball courts amounting to
$344,297. These projects were between 89% to 95% complete as of September 30, 2002.

Xiv
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The following schedule presents a summary of governmental fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002, and the increases and decreases in relation to prior year expenditures:

Percent 2002
2002 of Increase

o Expenditure Function Amount Total (Decrease)
General government .. .............. ... ... $ 1,644,990 240% $ 317,833
Publicsafety ....... .. .. ... ... ... .. ... 2,691.816 35.3% (56,297)

Physical environment . ... ... ... . ... . ... ... 036,195 12.3% 325,923

Transportation . . ....................... .. 847,439 11.1% 156,732

= Economic environment . . ... ..... .. ... .. .. .. 130,339 1.7% 47.824
: Culture/recreation .. ... ... .. ... ... . ... .. 772,047 10.1% 46,376
Capitaloutlay ... ... .. ... .. ... .. . ... .. 344,297 4.5% 222,235

Debtservice .. ... ......... ... ... ... ... ... 268,894 1.0% 5.301

Totals ... .. ... .. $ 6,570,290 $ 1,065,927

A summary of the individual functional components of the City’s governmental fund expenditures are displayed
in the following graph:

Governmental Fund Expenditures

For the Fiscal Year Ended Seplember 30, 2002

| $268,804 Expenditure Funcion

I}E@gél B ]  General Government

T s Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic Envitonment
Culture/recreation
Capital outlay

y [j Debt service

$2,691,816

General Fund Equity Balance Unreserved fund equity in the General Fund decreased 13.5% in 2002 totaling
$2,578,006 compared to $2,979,771 the preceding year. The unreserved (undesignated) portion of the fund
balance decreased $401,765 over the amount available at the end of 2001, This decrease is the result of a
decrease in revenues with an increase in expenditures, as explained above. The balance of unreserved fund

XV
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balance in the General Fund is equivalent to 41.9% of the total expenditures of the prior year or an amount
equal to internally fund from existing surplus funds of approximately 22 weeks of operating expenditures.
This indication of sound financial position will ensure the availability of resources needed to continue providing
quality services to the City’s citizens without imposing an undue tax burden.

Enterprise Operations The City's primary government enterprise operations are comprised of two separate
and distinct activities: the Water and Sewer Utility Fund, the Solid Waste Utility Fund. The following schedule
presents a summary of enterprise fund revenues for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, and the increases
and decreases in relation to prior year revenues:

Percent 2002
2002 of Increase

Operating Revenue Source Amount Total {Decrease)

Watersales .............. ... ... ... b 1,872,940 341% $ 327301
Sewercharges ...... ... .. ... ... ... ... 1,954,986 35.6% 50,654
Waste disposal charges . ................. .. 1,482,494 27.0% 103,751
Othercharges ........................... 76,886 1.4% 25,642
Interestearnings . ......................... 102,329 1.9% (122,847)
Otherincome . .......................... Q 0.0% (97.250)
Totals .................. ... ... ... $ 5489635 ¥ (71.749

A summary of the individual components of the City’s enterprise fund revenues are displayed in the following
graph:

Enterprise Fund Revenues

For the Fiscal Year Ended Sepiember 30, 2002

[476.683]

Water sales
Other charges
Sewer charges
Interest

Terasaeas] |

|
L]
|

Solid waste

$1,482,484
$102,329 ]
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The City’s combined enterprise find revenues decreased slightly by $7,749 during 2002, The decreases are
primarily from a drop in consumer demand for utility services.

The following schedule presents a summary of enterprise fund expenses for the vear ended September 30, 2002,
and the increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts:

Percent 2002
2002 of Increase
Operating Expenges Amount Total (Decrease}
Personal services . ......... ... .. ... .. . . . $ 044 247 265% § 77,851
Materials and supplies .. ... ... . ... ... . .. 183,761 52% 1,998
Utilities .. ... .. .. ... . ... ... . ... 247826 7.0% 2,934
Maintenance and repairs .. ..... ... ... .. ... 104,144 2.9% (1,031)
Contractual services . ... ......... ... ... . .. 1,269,043 35.6% 216,429
Otherexpenses ....................... ... 22,729 0.5% (22,286)
Baddebts ......... ... ... . ... . . ..., ... 3,855 0.1% (10,018)
Depreciation ............ .. .. .. ... . . . . . .. 790,247 22.2% 12417
Totals .. ... .. ... $ 3.565,852 §__278294

The City’s enterprise fund expenses are composed of the following:

Enterprise Fund Expenses

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Expenditire Function
Personnel
[:|$944’247 Supplies
Dltilities
Maintenance

Contraciual
Other
Bad debts

Depreciation

$22,729| | $3,855
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Utility operating expenses increased by $188,486 in 2002 compared to 2001's operating results. An increase
in personal service costs and contractual services are the primary reasons for the increase in the Water and
Sewer Fund operating expenses. The City added two plant operator trainees positions and made adjustments
to the salary and wage scale for utility workers to help maintain employees and reduce turnover in this
department. An increase in fees paid for consultants, engineering services, and fees paid for a study for
determining local limits relating to industrial treatment program accounts for the increase in contractual service
expenses.

The Solid Waste Fund operating expenses increased as a result of an increase in the rates paid under the solid
waste contract 1o a third party contractor to perform the refuse and sanitation services for the City.

The City’s net income before operating transfers from its Water and Sewer Fund and Solid Waste Fund
continued to remain strong at $841,113 and $397,262, respectively, for 2002. Operating transfers from the
Water and Sewer Fund to the General Fund totaled $450,000 (as reimbursement for administrative expenses)
and remained unchanged from 2001. Operating transfers from the Solid Waste Fund to the General Fund
totaled $250,000 for the year.

Pension Trust Fund Operations The Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund was created by the
City under the provisions of Chapter 185, Florida Statutes. During the vear, revenues were derived from City
contributions of $94,513, State contributions of $51,038, plan member contributions of $96,612, and total
interest and dividend earnings of $147,419. The plan’s investment portfolio experienced a net realized and
unrealized loss (depreciation) in the fair value of the trust fund’s investments of ($427,372) for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002, compared to a the net depreciation in fair value of the trust’s investments of
($899,323) experienced in 2001. In addition, the plan’s operating expenses (investment, administrative and
benefit payments) totaled $407,782 for the year. As of September 30, 2002, net plan assets held in trust for
pension benefits totaled $4,164,901, which was down 9.7% below last year’s amount.

The Municipal Firefighters” Pension Trust Fund was created by the City under the provisions of Chapter 175,
Florida Statutes. During the vear, revenues were derived from City contributions of $69,527, State
contributions of $35,164, plan member contributions of $42,594, and total interest and dividend eamnings of
$71,110. The plan’s investment portfolio realized net realized and unrealized losses in the fair value of it’s
investments of ($160,162). By comparison, in 2001 the trust’s investments declined in value by ($144,512).
The plan’s operating expenses (investment, administrative and benefit payments) totaled $187,089 for the year.
At year end, net plan assets held in trust for pension benefits totaled $1,781,745, which was down 6.7% below
fast vear’s amount.

The following page includes a graphic summary of the contributions to the City’s defined benefit pension plans
for the year ended September 30, 2002:

xviii
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Souree of Contributions to Defined Benefit Pension Plans
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Police Pension Trust Fire Penston Trust

$51,038

894,513 $69,527 |

Source of Earnings
Employer/City . Plan members D State

The City’s general employees, excluding police and firefighters, are provided pension benefits based upon their
individual dates of employment with the City. All general employees hired before January 1, 1996 are included
inthe Florida Retirement System of the State of Florida. This plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-cmployer public
employee retirement system created and administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration,
Division of Retirement. The City's payroll for employees covered under the plan totaled $1,322,008 for the
recent fiscal year. The City's contributions to the plan totaled $85,244 during the year.

Pursuant to Chapter 95-338, Laws of Florida, and Ordinance No, 2450, all new employees hired by the City
after December 31, 1995, do not participate in the Florida Retirement System. The City’s alternative
retirement plan is a defined contribution plan with an effective date of January 1, 1996, For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002 covered wages for employees participating in this plan amounted to $983,997; the
City contributions to the plan accounts of the participants amounted to $82,841 and employee contributions
to the plan amounted to $38,450. As of September 30, 2002, the City had an accumulated credit totaling
$67,338, from employee forfeitures which can be used to offset future contributions.

Debt Administration At September 30, 2002, the City had no general bonded debt obligations outstanding.
The City’s Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 were refunded in 2002 to obtain lower interest rates.
On August 6, 2002 the City issued the $14,030,000 in Water and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Scries 2002, rated AAA by Moody’s Investor Services and AAA by Standard and Poor’s Corporation and are
insured by MBIA Insurance Corporation to advance refund the Series 1992 bonds. Debt service payments
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during the year consisted of $330,000 in principal maturities on the Series 1992 debt before it was refunded
and $406,632 of related interest on the Series 1992 bonds., Debt service on the new Series 2002 bonds
commences in fiscal year 2003,

The City is also indebted to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for borrowings made under
the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. Principal and interest of $127,996 and $99,784, respectively, were
paid during the year on loans that provided the financing for a wastewater infiltration and inflow correction
project that was completed at the beginning of the year. Total outstanding principal at year end amounted to
$2,288,733. The principal borrowed to date on the local drainage improvements project financed by loans
through the State Revolving fund program totaled $907,507 at year end. The loan agreement for this project
was amended to provide a total anticipated amount to borrow of $4,404,654 with debt service payments
schedule to begin January 15, 2004,  As of September 30, 2002 there were $3,458,121 of funds left to
disburse to the City to finance the costs to complete this project.

General Iixed Assets This group of accounts represents the fixed assets of the general government operations
of the City. These assets have been recorded on the books at cost and carrying value bears no relation to the
actual fair value of the assets. The total cost of general fixed assets at September 30, 2002 totaled
$17,633,791 as compared to $16,140,014 for the preceding year, an increasc of 8.5%.

Cash Management Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposit and time deposit
accounts and U.S. Treasury securities ranging from 12 to 24 months to maturity. The City’s investment policy
is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly,
deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized in accordance with state statutes.
All collateral on deposits was held either by the City, its agent or a financial institution’s trust department in
the City’s name. At September 30, 2002, unrestricted cash was invested primarily in interest bearing demand
deposits, with the State Board of Administration, and in U.S. Treasury obligations.

Interest earmed on unrestricted funds for the past two years was as follows:

200 00}
General Fund .. ... ... .. ... .. ... ... .. ..., $ 72,341 162,774
Special Revenme Funds . ... .. ... ... .. .. .. 22.603 50,171
Capital Projects Fund ... ...... ..., ... .. .. .. 3,641 5,045
Water and Sewer System Fund .. ....... ... ... . 85,157 184,293
SolidWaste Fund ...... ... .. ... ... ...... .. 17,172 40,883
Total interest earnings . .. ....... ... ...... k) 200,914 443,166

The preceding amounts do not include interest and dividend earnings on the City’s pension trust funds because
these funds are not available for general City use.

Risk Management The City contracts for all known risk elements through the purchase of insurance from
outside insurance companies. In addition, various risk control techniques are in place to minimize accident
related losses. These include the establishment of safety rules and procedures, accident prevention training,
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and the ongoing efforts of the safety commuttee, which is charged with (1) reviewing accident reports to
identify and verify their causes; (2) recommending corrective actions; (3) reviewing employee safety
suggestions; (4) hearing and investigating employee complaints; (5) investigating hazardous conditions,
material or equipment; and (6) recommending awards or penalties. All insurance coverage is held by
commercial carriers and no settlements in excess of claims have been incurred during the past three fiscal
years.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit The City Charter and State Statutes require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants. The accounting firm of Brent Millikan & Company, P.A., was selected by the City
Commission to serve in this capacity. Their auditors' report on the general purpose financial statements is
included in the financial section of this report. Their reports on compliance and other matters is contained
in the Compliance section at the end of the comprehensive annual financial report.

Awards The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the government for its comprehensive annual financial report for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2001. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government reports.
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program standards.
Such report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last 25 consecutive years. We believe our current report continues to meet the
Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate,

In addition, the City received the GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual budget
for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2000. This is the thirteenth consecutive year that the City has
received this prestigious award. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the
City’s budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories including policy documentation,
financial planning and organization.

Acknowledgments The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made
possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the
department has my sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report. In
closing, without the leadership and support of the governmg body of the City, preparation of this report

would not have been possible.
Respectfully submitted,

Bovsda HMidsseaZor)

Brenda Gubernator
Director of Finance
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BRENT MILLIKAN & COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor, City Commission
and City Manager
City of Holly Hill, Florida

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida , as
of and for the year ended September 30, 2002, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of City of Holly Hill, Florida's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund, which statements reflect net assets held in trust for pension
benefits of $4,164,901 as of September 30, 2002 and changes (decrease) in net assets held in trust for pension
benefits of ($445,572) for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report
has been furnished to us, and in our opinion, insofar as it relates to data included for the Police Officers’

Retirement Trust Fund, is based solely upon the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of City of Holly Hill, Florida, as of September 30, 2002, and the results of its
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 21, 2003
on our consideration of City of Holly Hill, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

205 MAGNOLIA ST, « NEW SMYRNA BEACH, FL 32168-7125 + (386) 427-1333 « FAX (386) 427-5823 * www.bmcpa.com

MEMBER: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Private Companies Practice Section
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Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of City
of Holly Hill, Florida, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in ail material respects in relation to the general-purpose
financial statements taken as a whole.

The information presented in the Statistical Section is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it

Bt Miblb 3 lo., C

February 21, 2003



GENERAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Combined Statements - Cverview)

The diverse nature of a governmental operation and the necessity of
complying with legal provisions require accounting systems unlike those
commonly used by commercial enterprises. Rather than establishing a
single unified set of accounts for recording and summarizing all financial
fransactions, the accounts of a governmental unit are organized on the
basis of funds or account groups.

The general-purpose financial statements were prepared to allow the user
of the financial report to obtain an overview and broad perspective of City
of Holly Hill, Florida’s financial position ahead of the comparable data
on a detailed basis by individual funds.









COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Governmental Fund Types
Special Capital
Assets and Other Debits: General Revenue Projects
Cash and cash equivalents ....coovvecreenmiinn e 2,244,684 1,418,838 284,322
INVESINIENES 1ueeviererieeesieernererererssess s essecresresssssissaessarninsresssnanses 296,663 0 0
Receivables - net: '
Delinquent taXes .....cceeveeeeinieene et e 44,363 0 0
ACCOUILS 1overeerierarsirerareniorirsnssassrsssssasssesesssensararmosseasssssssosss 264,462 34,073 0
ACCTUEd INLETESE cuviviieiriaiiiciiieecereceraessrararrrtsrneeessisssssrassasens 1,375 0 0
TLCTIS 1eviteerecircnreressrer e neesetese e s tn s senraseesn e s rnresmn b as s esrarrenern 54,308 0 0
Dute fTom BIOKETS .oveevererierieresererrevaeanirresrevncaseceessiisiissssssssnenenes 0 0 0
Due from other fnds ...ecrveccrmmrnncrmren e 7,641 766 0
Advances to other funds ... 59,700 0 0
Due from other GOVEIrnmEnts ........c.vvcreeereimninininisniniercrnssssaes 343,527 5,695 0
Prepaid eI .o sen e et s 0 0 0
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Sinking and Reserve Funds ... 0 0 0
Renewal and Replacement Fund ..........ccccvmrerrneveniiiianns 0 0 0
Restricted Impact FEes ..o 0 0 ]
CUSLOMET ABPOSIS 1veveererrerrersisersaecterseaseesrerareresremebesiesiseses 0 0 0
Accounts and notes 1eceivable ... v 0 0 0
LARA (oo e e e 0 0 0
BUIQINGS 1vvveeivriinriirnvrinnrioiriirss insssnsssinessassessesscsssressserssmenesiens 0 0 0
Improvements other than buildings ......ccoceovveeninrinnrieesnenns 6 0 0
Machinery and equIPIMEnt ......occooceerieinirr e 0 0 0
Accurmnutlated depreciation ..oovvecer e e G 0 0
ConstruCtion N PrOBIESS .vvvuveriiieieerieeeraesrerrsreascesesceseseomsnsnes 0 0 0
Unamortized debt eXpense .......cccovevinvreinnnine i ireseeens 0 0 0
Other debits: '
Amount to be provided for retirement
of general long-term debt ... 0 0 0
Total assets and other debits. .oiiiirnirenrees 3,316,723 1,459,372 284,322

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Statement 1

Page 1 of 2
Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Types Fund Types Account Groups
General General Totals-
Pension Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Trusts Assets Debt 2002 2001

3,792,787 205,044 0 0 7,945,675 7,526,380

0 5,704,767 0 0 6,001,430 6,868,185

0 0 0 0 44,363 29,979

342,657 0 0 0 641,192 774,761

0 41,079 0 ] 42,454 40,964

0 0 0 0 54,308 44,347

0 1,832 0 0 1,832 5,306

3,729 0 0 0 12,136 238,161

0 0 0 0 59,700 59,700

0 0 0 0 349,222 246,020

8,560 0 0 0 8,560 10,532
168,469 0 0 0 168,469 209,769
702,044 0 ¢ 0 702,044 410,237
754,519 0 0 0 754,519 236,827

0 0 0 0 0 19,119

394,051 0 0 0 394,051 10,757
154,739 0 1,888,581 ] 2,043,320 1,625,861
10,855,040 ] 3,655,497 0 14,510,537 14,503,897
11,228,312 0 8,812,032 0 20,040,844 19,447,011
7,071,543 0 2,933,384 0 10,004,927 9,648,076
{11,505,335) 0 0 0 (11,505,335) (10,750,394)
232,786 0 344,297 0 577,083 318,770
267,081 0 0 0 267,081 226,676

0 0 0 2,334,170 2,334,170 1,871,897
24,471,482 5,952,722 17,633,791 2,334,170 55,452,582 53,622,838




COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS - (Continued)
September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

CGovernmental Fund Types

Special Capital
Liabilities, Equity and Other Credits: General Revenue Projects
Liabilities:
ACCOUNLS PAYADIL .o.vvver i ereenis e e e b b 79,326 1,042 92,464
Accrued HabilIHES .vvivevvieieivincieisieressissrserrreresrrceesteseesasssres 188,785 8,385 0
Pension contribution payable ... 0 0 0
Refundable deposits ... 1,613 0 0
Due t0 Other fUNAS .ovovviceeeriierririsirr e crresnrrrrr s sresssesmcesine 4,495 7,641 0
Advance from other funds ... eerci 0 59,700 0
Defetred TEVENUES .ovvvvreiireescrrerressrrrrerseraresiersasesssnmsssssanses 176,747 3,106 0
Restricted fund liabilities:
Accounts payable ... 0 0 0
Accrued HabilIties ...ooveicrererevrniren e e 0 0 0
Customers' deposits .ouoiiiieecreerrn e ecsrsassssneeses 0 0 0
Current portion of long-term debt ..o 0 0 0
Revenue bonds payable - et cvviiiivccrie e verscercreeeneeens 0 0 0
Notes payable ..o O 0 0
Obligation for compensated abSenCes ..ovverrerevreercainiiinsenn, 0 0 0
Total lHabilities ..cocvrvereerernrrarernismerrrsreeesccrsmseinnaeen: 450,966 79,874 92,464
Equity and Other Credits:
Investrent in general fixed assets ..o 0 0 0
Retained Eamings:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt .....coovvvvrees 0 0 0
Restricted for renewal and replacement ..o..occovvivciiiciennne 0 0 0
Restricted for debt SEIvICe .vvvvvvvreecin i 0 0 0
URIESIICTED .oovvvierrecicere e ereee st eeeresmn s enesrbe s 0 G 0
Fund Balances:
Reserved for enciumbrances ...cccoovecevneeccnreenininnrsnneens 92,719 0 0
Reserved for ransportation ... eovevesnre e eesnnenn, 113,832 0 0
Reserved for advances to other funds ......ccovevvervniincinne 59,700 ] 0
Reserved for police education ........ocveeeveninciiicrnnrernnnnn, 21,500 0 0
Reserved for stormwater drainage .....o.cooeeevvinieenriininninnenns 0 1,145,128 0
Reserved for capital projects ...orevenrvinccniirmrenceenicnnss ' 0 0 191,858
Reserved for law enforcement truast .....cocooocccneinininieicnens 0 33,820 0
Reserved for pension benefits ..oocovvvcrerinimvrcicccininn 0 0 0
Unreserved - Undesignated ......ocoviviovevenvnionmmcnenninenn 2,578,006 200,550 0
Total equity and other credifs......ccvvviniiinociinennnns 2,865,757 1,379,498 191,858
Total liabilities, equity and other credits .......oceeeene. 5 3,316,723 1,459,372 284,322

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Proprietary Fiduciary Account Groups
Fund Types Fund Type General General Totals-
Pension Fixed Long-Term Memorandum Only
Enterprise Trusts Assets Debt 2002 2001
3 119,965 6,076 0 0 298,873 251,953
36,747 0 0 0 233,917 267,853
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 1,613 1,892
0 0 0 0 12,136 238,161
0 0 0 0 58,700 59,700
0 0 0 0 179,853 143,234
7,595 0 0 0 7,595 3,756
171,282 0 0 0 171,282 0
581,583 0 0 0 581,583 551,314
89,956 0 0 ] 89,956 330,000
12,481,775 0 0 0 12,481,775 12,502,062
2,198,777 0 0 1,807,212 4,005,989 3,787,967
150,991 0 0 526,958 677,949 618,633
15,838,671 6,076 0 2,334,170 18,802,221 18,756,525
0 0 17,633,791 0 17,633,791 16,140,014
3,357,032 3,357,032 3,352,724
694,449 0 0 0 694,449 410,237
295,713 0 0 0 295,713 77,059
4,285,617 0 0 0 4,285,617 3,751,910
0 0 0 0 92,719 0
0 0 0 G 113,832 184,845
0 0 ] 0 59,700 59,700
0 0 0 0 21,500 20,621
0 0 0 0 1,145,128 995,168
0 0 0 0 191,858 202,114
0 4] 0 0 33,820 49,983
0 5,946,646 0 0 5,946,646 6,521,074
0 0 0 0 2,778,556 3,100,864
8,632,811 5,946,646 17,633,791 0 36,650,361 34,866,313
13 24,471,482 5,952,722 17,633,791 2,334,170 55,452,582 53,622,838



COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST ¥FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILIL, FLORIDA

Governmental Fund Types

Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
Revenue:
TAKES vvvrverenrrrrsrenserssernrarsassarsersrrsnerssnsesesamessssvassensnsssasassssarns 3,597,639 71,926 0
Licenses and PEIMULS ..o vvveerersrerererninrsrvrneesessssirisisssissssssen et 247,330 0 0
INtergoVernmental ... ..o 1,071,285 171,750 0
Charges for SEIVICES ... 133,964 415,786 0
Fines and forfRitures ......coovevveeevieeceeviesne svassessssaesrnerareenes 77,199 9,740 0
MISCELIATIEOUS .1vvvrervieiiioeerrisreirees i rresrrereeesasssssrsssinsaresresssnn 131,704 25,127 153,641
TOtaL TEVEIUE (it e ressserae s s rmteerss e 5,259,121 694,329 153,641
Expenditures:
Current:
General GOVETIIMENE ...ovvvviiiecciiie e 1,644,990 0 0
PUbBLC SafEty covoveveiccvcrerincicsienris e st es st ans 2,633,784 58,032 0
Physical environment ........o.occevevmirecrveremsnissssssseininennen 0 936,195 0
TTANSPOTIATION vevvrcveeerrrserersnsreernirerersirmeesisissssssnsnssseasee: 835,439 12,000 0
Fconomic enVITOMITIENL ..veveviveviecveeeeeessresvarssessaessseassresons 0 130,539 0
Culture/TECTEAtION ..oveeere v veerrerreeeeneecerinee e raseesarnessnnnssasnnnes 772,047 0 0
Capital outlay ..o 0 0 344,297
Debt Service:
Principal retirement ......oooveee e 216,973 0 0
Interest and fiscal charges .......cvvveevveerviisiinnns ererereeneieia 51,921 0 0
Total expendifiIfes .....ccovvvierirr e 6,155,154 1,136,766 344,297
Excess of revenue over {(under)
EXPENAIRITES Lo et s (896,033) {442,437) {190,656)
. Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt ....... ere et e e eas st e et naeeas 0 652,945 0
Operating Tansfers il ..o voveecrioinr s, 760,000 2,747 180,400
Operating Tansfers (OUL} v e (183,147) 0 0
Total other financing sources (USeS) .....coovvecisnrennenens 516,853 655,692 180,400
Excess of revenue and other sources
over expenditures and other USes ..o (379,180) 213,255 (10,256)
Fund balances, beginning of Year ........coveeccniiinnnnniniin 3,244,937 1,166,243 202,114
Fund balances, end of Year .....oocovcrvirinrvcnormeccnene i 2,865,757 1,379,498 191,858

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Statement 2

Totals-
(Memorandum Only)
2002 2001
b 3,609,565 4,104,517
247,330 241,509
1,243,035 1,359,494
549,750 516,804
86,939 116,004
310,472 340,929
6,107,091 6,679,257
1,644,990 1,327,157
2,691,816 2,748,113
936,195 610,272
847,439 690,707
130,539 82,715
772,047 725,671
344,297 122,062
216,973 204,596
51,921 58,997
7,636,217 6,570,290
(1,529,126) (458,323)
652,945 458,766
883,147 692,191
(183,147) (2,191)
1,352,945 1,148,766
(176,181) 690,443
4,613,294 3,922,851

$ 4,437,113 4,613,294




COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

General Fund

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenue:
TAKES 1vvvireierrrerniresresineerreseesaessnsseesrarassrnensssneesssssssisssearaansans 3,664,900 3,597,639 (67,261)
Licenses and PEIIMLS vovcvrvcrierrrireimreerersesrencemctsssssses 292,500 247,330 {45,170)
Intergovernmental ... .....cvvvveverrerereesremrreeeese e seenranssaeenes 990,400 1,071,284 80,884
Charges for SETVICES .vorvvrverrvvririnrerserrrreresesseesessnsinsssins 149,000 133,964 {15,036)
Fines and forfelfures . ...ocvvvvririersernese e srecsronessninennes 73,700 77,199 3,499
MISCEIATIEOUS ..ovvvevereiniseieveinrerresis e srerrannsvanermeeensessesssnsse 177,500 131,705 {45,795)
TOtAl TEVETIUR oo eeeeeceb e ssseaesrerierresreens 5,348,000 5,259,121 (38,879)
Expenditures:
Current:
General gOVEINMEN! ....oovvvicraee e resserarerassceassenine 1,763,300 1,644,990 118,310
PUbliC SAfELY vvvveevcecirciars e enre s revae e 2,785,700 2,633,784 151,916
Physical envIIomment .....ccveveerinrovenerrerermcersinesiaens 0 0 0
TTanspoTtation ......eesreerrnrrnescerremmenesine e reensinssesiniasens 1,108,900 835,439 273,461
ECOnOmic EnVITONMENt .. .vvverriririersreemremesesressesrasnins 0 0 0
Culture/TeCTRAION (1vvvrreeerirseerr e eece e sees e ennerasser 916,200 772,047 144,153
Capital QULlAY ©evvevereereirerrircreres e raresee s seescsisssamssnsssesressesnens 0 0 0
Debt Service:
Principal feHIement .o.covvrceire e e veesssasaenranes 197,000 216,973 (19,973)
Interest and fiscal charges ..o..ccoveviiicieicivenes 52,000 51,921 79
Total eXpendifires ..oovvevrervcnrne e eneseens 6,823,100 6,155,154 667,946
Excess of revenue over (under)
EXPEIIAIIUTES -..vvvrieeeiereevrrereerereeseeseesmerenrersrnere s {1,475,100) (896,033) 579,067
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt ....... v r ettt enes 0 0 0
Operating transfers i ... 700,000 700,000 0
Operating transfers (OUL) ....ccevevivvererrevseeermm s {183,200} (183,147) 53
Appropriated fund balance ..o 958,300 0 (958,300
Total other ﬁnan‘cing SOUICES (USES) wvevererinnrennns 1,475,100 516,853 (958,247)
Excess of revenue and other sources
over expenditures and other uses ..o 0 (379,180) (379,180)
Fund balances, beginning of year .......cccevvrvmveiiiiiennnn 3,244,937 3,244,937 0
Fund balances, end of Year ....cccvevvvrionesrecimmicn e 3,244,937 2,865,757 {379,180)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Statement 3

Page 1 of 2
Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Fund
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

71,900 71,926 206 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

268,100 171,750 (96,350) 93,300 0 (93,300)
417,300 415,786 (1,514) 0 0 0
9,000 9,710 710 0 0 0

36,800 25,157 {11,643) 150,000 153,641 3,641
803,100 694,329 (108,771) 243,300 153,641 (89,659)

0 0 0 0 0 0

61,900 58,032 3,868 0 0 0
2,849,100 936,195 1,912,905 0 0 0
12,000 12,0600 0 0 0 0
282,000 130,539 151,461 0 0 0
97,300 0 97,300 0 0 0

0 0 0 573,700 344,297 229,403

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
3,302,300 1,136,766 2,165,534 573,700 344,297 229,403
(2,499,200) (442,437) 2,056,763 (330,400) {(190,656) 139,744
2,402,100 652,945 (1,749,155) 0 0 0
2,800 2,747 (53) 180,400 180,400 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
94,300 0 (94,300) 150,000 0 {150,000)
2,499,200 655,692 (1,843,508) 330,400 180,400 {150,000)
0 213,255 213,255 0 (10,256) (10,256)
1,166,243 1,166,243 0 202,114 202,114 0
1,166,243 1,379,498 213,255 202,114 191,858 (10,256)
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND

Statement 3

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Page 2 of 2
ALE-SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - (Continued) 74 Ll Goo. ( C{ ”T'y P.( <,
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
Totals - All Funds
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenue:
TEKES cvrreririrrrmercereeriessee oo nssesrassrsstrerrne e sseseasesesmonenrssasnssinins 3 3,736,800 3,669,565 {67,235)
Licenses and PEITILS «....coovievvrevecrnreessrrreeisiissesssenssarasns 292,500 247,330 {45,170)
Intergovernmental ......c.cocevniivcincnincree e 1,351,800 1,243,034 (108,766)
Charges fOr SEIVICES .uovmimmmimrinirineie e scrererenn s s 566,300 549,750 (16,550)
Fines and forfeitures ...c.covviivciiiiiec e 82,700 26,909 4,209
MiSCEllanEous ..ocvvviiiciiiiirrrirrerssressrre e s e ees i ar s 364,300 310,503 (53,797)
TOtAl TEVEIUL .ovveiev et e tererann e resarsnne 6,394,400 6,107,091 {287,309)
Expenditures:
Current:
General SOVEITUMENE .cccovviveeriiverenrciareeeni et s sasasns 1,763,300 1,644,990 118,310
Public safety v e s 2,847,600 2,691,816 155,784
Physical enviromment ........ooveeeveeeee i erssn s seeernens 2,849,100 936,195 1,912,905
TranSPOrtAtion .....vciicrreiieereeceeeeceeeeeee e sretr s aree e e e eses sessens 1,120,900 847 439 273,461
Economic environment ... sseessseseesessensnies 282,000 136,539 151,461
Culture/TeCreation ...vcvvievervenrc s sssrereraeeresrenenas 1,013,500 772,047 241,453
Capital oUtlaY oo 573,700 344,297 229,403
Debt Service;
Principal retirement ..ovecveicvrninieereeecvaerererssnssernecsorncnens 197,000 216,973 (19,973)
Interest and fiscal ChATZEs covvvvvvivinirnerves e 52,000 51,921 79
Total expendiftires ......iveveevieiereee e s 10,699,100 7,636,217 3,062,883
Excess of revenue over (under)
EXPENAIUIES ..ot (4,304,700} (1,529,126} 2,775,574
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt .o 2,402,100 652,945 (1,749,155)
Operating fransfers Il . ..o vvviirinisrnrnsrnrirrsesressscsieesiersensieen: 883,200 883,147 (53)
Operating transfers (OU) ....coevvcrivnnne e (183,200} (183,147) 53
Appropriated fund balance ......covvveeiereen 1,202,600 0 {1,202,600)
Total other financing sources (US€s) ..oovevviriniriennns 4,304,700 1,352,945 {2,951,755)
Excess of revenue and other sources
over expenditures and Other USES ......co.vveerrrereens 0 (176,181) (176,181)
Fund balances, beginming of Year ......c.ceveeevinrinmvescsiinnanens 4,613,294 4,613,294 0
Fund balances, end of YEar ........cvvvvrmime i 3 4,613,294 4,437,113 (176,181)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL PROPRIETARY ¥UND TYPES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Statement 4

2002 2001
Operating Revenue:
CRAIZEs fOr SEIVICES vvrarivreiririnsnie st sicreseseasserasssse st san e sae s sssre st sasasasseasssns 5,387,306 5,174,958
Operating Expenses:
Personal SEIVICES 1urviunvrirerireii it as et eoeae bbb 044,247 866,396
Materials and SUPPLIES ...corverereerenriierci s e sre e v saen st 183,761 181,763
UBIHES 1avnviiiveniicsesitisnrrnesrse i s st bssasss s esssenns sesassssesasenes 247,826 244,892
Maintenance and repairs ........cceceeoicreene i e e 104,144 105,175
CONMTACTHAL BEIVICES 1vviviiveireeeirisiirisisseiias e issseseasstssasesterassesstesasrsentestsessseses 1,269,043 1,052,614
Other EXPENSES .....eiviriiiiiec e escssse e sesanistsssssasa s s sses s arennsesasess 22,729 45,015
Bad debts ... s 3,855 13,873
DEPIECIALON .c.eoveiciiiieiicti st st vera st sransesesrebestesesesas s anraratas 790,247 777,830
Total OPErating EXPenSEs ......ovivvvrivisvererrsrrereresrrssssrorsorssnssresssssreresesn: 3,565,852 3,287,558
Total OPerating IMCOMIE ivviii ittt eeestsseesee e s e s sar e ere st s st eas 1,821,454 1,887,400
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):
INEETEST BAITUIIES ..occveireerr it ceeses e raesbe s esassse s resrsa e st e sasae b eseenn s 102,329 225,176
Operating Zrant FEVEIUE .......oveevveciercria s eascrrsssesesssessseseestenstessssetesssanses 0 1,110
Other INCOME {EXPEISES) ...euvivrrrrerenereisreeiesesresssreesessessssssessssssesssesssesassosas 4,281 96,140
INEETESE EXDEMSE 1uovireieririeecirisstssnc s s as s sr st st s as e bbb st s sme s (689,689) (865,326)
Total nonoperating revenue (EXPENSES) ..o evurireerrereeriserererressesinnes {583,079) (542,900)
Net income before operating transfers .........coeeereecorieerrecreenreenecerennne 1,238,375 1,344,500
OPETatiNg TANSTEIS 1o.oiviiivvricei i ettt cresae s s ta s e saess st be s s aresberssbesbens (700,000) {690,000)
Net nCOME (LOSE) 1virivinrririiiri et sss s es e s s sa s e 538,375 654,500
Capital CONTIIULIONS .ocviieciiiiii e sn s b et se e 502,506 105,665
Net increase in retained SarmnES .o i iviseres s ssssisssssesesssns 1,040,881 760,165
Retained earnings, beginning 0f YEAT .......cceuoverrcruiereerincseresesssinsesnrssiessssasnas 7,591,930 6,831,765
Retained earnings, €nd 0f YEar .....cv.v..ioievierviereeisssssossiss s sssscssssssssssssseessnnes 8,632,811 7,591,930

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Statement 8

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES Page 1 of 2
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
2002 2001
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received TTOI CUSTOIMIEIS. . i et vavereraiestiesteesterssre s sararsomssestssssesinssnsnassuninsnios 3 5,048,873 5,141,484
Cash paid for personal SEIVICES. ...y {928,263) (850,097)
Cash paid t0 SUPPLHEIS. ..ocov et rrrre et eserse st e s s r b e bet bbb bens {2,083,116) (1,424,388)
Net cash provided by operating actiVities........coinicinimmmir e, 2,037,494 2,866,999
Cash Flows From Noncapital and Related
Financing Activities:
NONOperating revenie (EXPENSES) ..o vttt sssacsassasssmsssssesssreas, 4,281 1,110
Operating fransfers (OUL) vt res e er e e er e e cses bbb s bbb (700,000) {690,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
and related financing actVItEs ..oovivuiiieermenenn s s (695,719) {688,890)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Capital CONTIDULIONS 1.vvvicvieirenermrse e et ss e e s st sn s s e g s gas e ss e 502,506 105,665
Proceeds received on 135UaNGE OF Dt wvvvivieivie it recvrr e ninrs s csnnraee s e rres s ansnc s 131,866 940,573
Debt reduction OULLAYS ... v rriesrr et ssis st se e e tens (457,995) (310,000)
Deposit to escrow for advanced refunding ........covevceriiinciisinr e (258,988) 0
Acquisition and construction of capital 28818 ...ccoovriiniiiir e (174,625) (1,325,257)
Proceeds from 5ale OF @8881S. v e b b e 0 46,529
Interest paid .....ccooovieveinnrininr s ST PO PO UN (451,977) (812,742
Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related fINAnCing aCHVITIES ....ccvveveiniererineemrree s (709,213) (1,355,232)
Investing Activities:
Sales and (acquisitions) of INVESHTIENTS .....ecvevvinnrisennre s s 249,385 (238,161)
IIHELESE TECEIVEA Lovviiisvisrieeisieeeceineecsirsrecn s sbeee s bestsesn s bsasnrbasas saseeeseambetssnbaasssrransaters 102,329 213,950
Net cash provided by investing activities......ovvircciinnvrnvnierers e 351,714 (24,211%
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents.........cin, 084,276 798,666
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of Y8ar ..o 4,433,543 3,634,877
Cash and cash equivalents, end of YEAT ... ovirccrcnmciicnniine et $ 5417,819 4,433,543
Reconciliation to Balance Sheet: _
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.....ocoiin e $ 3,792,787 3,557,591
Restricted cash and cash equIValents....o.ovverecvireniciinn e 1,625,032 875,952
Total cash and cash equIVAIENLS......c...ccveercieree e 3 5,417,819 4,433,543

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - (Continued)

Statement 5

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES Page 2 of 2
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
2002 2001
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating inCOME (JOSS) wuvrivenrrreririiieiisierisiissessessierererssssessesresssssssrsssssssssssssssssssann. 1,821,454 1,887,400
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
DICPTECIALION eeveerevicriniiinitiisie s sssseerseesesessssasaseessenssssssnasesaessesneresssnsasmansssssesans 790,247 777,830
Bad debt XPENSE wouiireriivriiecccrercecses s rees e sese st s e s e s e easea st et ananenstoreresenensns 4,135 13,873
OHHEE INICOITIE 1uvvveriresieinrereristeresieeeiesrsseessesssssssessssntasssasassbesesessbestatsnesetnsasaterermeres 0 54,184
Changes in assets and liabilities:
AcCoUnts TECEIVADIE, N1E ...o.rviviiiiisieerier e iesrsseseresrssrasssssssssasresessanas (373,371) 15,013
Due from other GOVEIMIMENLS ......vuivecircareemeieeevsies i ccsssssniiseansesisssessassones 534 0
Due from other fUndS ......cceiciicc e (3,729) 6,107
Prepaid EXPEISES .vvvvvvveiicies bbb bbbttt s s anaes 1,972 (1,075)
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE ....oeivereerireiiiecricniene e st sn e snns (11,840) {173,127)
Accrued HabilItes ....c.ccoviiiiiinrs et nssnsans (16,010) 8,014
Due t0 Other FUNAS wvicoirirere et sttt srat st (238,161) 238,161
CUStOMET AEPOSILS 1uvevcrerirerriniiesssieisetesessss e esesarnesrasssessssnasssesessssssessssssnnsses 30,269 32,334
Obligation for compensated abSENCES .....cvrrvrererreminaimrce e eeressreresssesaren. 31,994 8,285
Net cash provided by operating activities.......ocvvremrrrerneresrrecersesemsrresssersrssenes 2,037,494 2,866,999

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS

ALL PENSION TRUST FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

Statement 6

" ‘f/o

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA ;?\3 6/(’ {
) - P’
W \/,
-*I f‘)"r
e
Municipal Municipal j
Police Officers' Firefighters' Totals -
Retirement Pension Memorandum Only
Trust Trust 2002 2001
Additions: ,
Contributions from:
EMpPlOVET w1ovvcicirciniervnnnrenienenssesresessessenes 94,513 69,527 164,040 122,550
SHAE 1oeeveereeee s v s ra e reres 51,038 35,164 86,202 103,366
Plan members ... v senisnsiios 96,612 42,594 139,206 127,495
Total contribUtions.. . veeresreinrenrens 242,163 147,285 389,448 353,411
Investment income:
Net realized and unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) in fair value of investments .. (427,372) {160,162) {587,534) (1,043,835)
Interest and dividend earnings .......cccoeeenee 147,419 71,110 218,529 247,207
(279,953) (89,052) {369,005) (796,628)
Less: investment management fees ............ (46,179) (19,243) {65,422) (81,328)
Total investment income .......ocvueeee (326,132) (108,295) {434,427) {877,956)
Total additions ...ccccervierenerireceriareenns {(83,969) 38,990 {44,979) (524,545)
Deductions:
Benefit PAYMENLS .o.oovecvrerevrrenervreresrersinraserens 285,674 150,365 436,039 415,463
Refunds/withdrawals ...........ocooveonvnvverorrnrinns 53,028 430 53,458 11,183
Administrative eXpenses . rnevecresnes 22,901 17,051 39,952 43,311
Total deductions.......coocovrvvenicnierens 361,603 167,846 529,449 469,957
Net IICTEASE 1vvvvvevvrreesrirriarvesserernrenens (445,572) (128,856) (574,428) (994,502)
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits:
Beginning of Year ....c.cocvvvivcreecreereeresivenns 4,610,473 1,910,601 6,521,074 7,515,576
End of ¥ear ...t 4,164,901 1,781,745 5,946,646 6,521,074

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2002
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida, have been prepared in conformance with accounting principals
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for promulgating governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The following is a summary of the City’s significant accounting policies:

Municipal Creation and Qrganization

The City of Holly Hill, Florida, is a municipal corporation created by the Laws of Florida, Chapter 67-1274, located in
Volusia County. The City was originally incorporated under the general laws of Florida on July 1, 1901 (Records of
Incorporations, Volusia County, Vol. I, p. 101). This incorporation was validated in 1903 by Laws of Florida, Chapter 5346
(1903). The legislative branch of the City is composed of an elected five-member City Commission consisting of the Mayor
and four commissioners. The City Commission is governed by the City Charter and by state and local taws and regulations.
The City Commission is responsible for the establishment and adoption of policy. The execution of such policy is the
responsibility of the Commission-appointed City Manager.

Reporting Entity

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of the applicable fund types and account groups governed by the City Commission of the City of
Holly Hill, Florida (the primary government) and its component units. The component unit discussed below is included in
the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationship with the City.

Individual Component Unit Disclosures

Blended Component Unit. The City of Holly Hill Community Redevelopment Fund was created by Ordinance 2426 to
account for the receipt and expenditure of property tax revenues from the tax increment financing district to support City
redevelopment. Although legally separate, the same elected City Commission members serve as the governing board of the
Community Redevelopment Fund. Since the City is financially accountable for the activities of the Fund, its governing board
is the same, and its relationship to the City is significant, its financial activities are reported on a blended basis as if it were
part of the primary government as a special revenue fund.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate
accounting enfity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets, labilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate, Government resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled, The various funds are grouped in the financial statements in this report as follows:

Governmental Fund Types - Governmental funds are accounted for on a spending measurement focus. Only current
assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources
(revenues and other financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other uses) of "available spendable resources" during
a period. The following fund categories are included in the City's governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the principal fund of the City which accounts for all financial transactions not
accounted for in other funds. The majority of current operating expenditures of the City other than proprietary fund

activities are financed through revenues received by the General Fund.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trust or capital projects) which are legally restricted for particular functions or activities of the City.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for the financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2002
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund Type - Proprietary funds are accounted for on a capital maintenance measurement focus. All assets
and all liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets.
Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Proprietary fund measurement focus is upon determination of net income, financial position, and cash flows. The
following fund category is included in the City's proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises - where the intent of the City is that the costs {expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general pubiic on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges. The acquisition, maintenance and improvement of the physical plant facilities required to provide
these goods and services are financed from existing cash resources, the issuance of revenue bonds, federal grants
contributions and other City funds. '

Fiduciary Fund Types - Fiduciary Funds, which include trust and agency funds, account for assets held by the City in
a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and other funds. The
following fund categories are included in the City's fiduciary funds:

Pension Trust Funds - Pension trust funds (Police and Fire) are accounted for in essentially the same manner as
proprictary funds since capital maintenance is critical.

Account Groups - Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the City's general fixed
assets and general long-term debt. The following are the City's account groups:

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This group of accounts is established to account for all fixed assets of the
City, other than those accounted for in the proprietary funds

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This group of accounts is established to account for all long-term debt
of the City except those accounted for in the proprietary finds.

Measurement Focus - Basis of Accounting
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

Governmental Funds Types

All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement
focus, only current assets and current liabilities are included in the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other uses) in net
current assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is utilized by the governmental fund types and the expendable trust fund.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they
become both measurable and available). "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
“available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. The City considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end, A
one-year availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is
recognized when due or when amounts have been accumulated for payments to be made early in the following year, and
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED)

certain compensated absences and claims and judgements which are recognized when the obligations are expected to
be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest earnings, and charges for
services, Fines, permits, and certain infergovernmental revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues received as reimbursements for specific purposes or projects
are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded.

Deferred revenues are reported when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria
for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the City before it has
a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources,
the Liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

Proprietary Fund Types

Proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included in the balance
sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases and decreases in net total assets,

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and pension trust funds. Under this method, revenue
is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Based on the accounting and
reporting standards set forth in Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20, “dccounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting ", the City has
opted to apply only those accounting and reporting pronouncements issued by the GASB subsequent to November 30,
1989,

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the accompanying financial
statements:

a.  On or before August 1st, the City Manager submits a preliminary budget to the City Commission for the ensuing
fiscal year. .

b. Budget workshop sessions are scheduled by the City Commission, as needed.

¢. The general summary of the budget and notice of public hearing is published in a local newspaper.

d. Priorto Octoi)er 1st, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

e. The City Manager is authorized to transfer part or all of an unencumbered appropriation balance among programs
within a department and, upon written request by the City Manager, the City Commission may, by ordinance,

transfer part or all of any unencumbered appropriation balance from one department to-another.

f. The City Commission must approve all inter-departmental budget amendments and/or appropriations transfers. The
level of classification detail at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is within a department or
division by fund.

g. Every appropriation lapses at the close of the fiscal year.
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NOTE 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED)

h. Thebudgets for all governmental funds that were either adopted or amended during the year by the City Commission
were prepared on the same basis of accounting utilized by those specific fund types. The General, Special Revenue
and Capital Projects Funds are required to have legally adopted annual budgets.

i.  Under current budget policy, the management can amend a budget within a particular department, at the division
level only. Amendments from one department to another, must be approved by the City Commission, as the budget
is adopted at the departmental level.

Encumbrances

Throughout the fiscal year, an encumbrance system is employed to account for any commitments resulting from approved
purchase orders and contracts, Encumbrances are not treated as expenditures nor as liabilities, and as such are not recorded
in the formal accounting records of the City. While the City strongly encourages liquidation of all outstanding purchase
orders prior to the end of the year, outstanding encumbrances at year end, when applicable, are reported as reservations of
fund balance for subsequent years' expenditure based on the encumbered appropriation carried over. Appropriations lapse
at the end of the fiscal year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City deposits all cash surpluses in interest bearing checking accounts. Earnings from these accounts are appropriately
allocated to the depositing fund accounts based upon the investment equity and are used, where applicable, to finance general
municipal operations. For purposes of proprietary fund statements of cash flows, all highly liquid debt instruments purchased
with original maturity dates of three months or less are considered by the City to be cash equivalents.

Investments
The City’s investments are reported at fair value, State statutes authorize the government to invest and reinvest any surplus

public funds in the following:

*  The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, or any intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant
to the Florida Interlecal Cooperation Act.

»  Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit quality rating from a
nationally recognized rating agency.

+ Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories.

-

Direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Duwring the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services
rendered. These interfund receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds” on the
balance sheet.

Advances to Other Funds

Long-term interfund loans receivables are reported as advances and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account,
which indicates that they do not constitute expendable, available financial resources, and therefore are not available for
appropriation.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED)

Receivables
Accounts receivable have been reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts which has been provided based upon

management's analysis of historical trends.

Operating sales of the City’s water and sewer system are recognized on the basis of the cycle billings rendered monthly,
Unbilled utility service charges are recognized and accrued at year end by prorating the first cycle billing subsequent to the
end of the fiscal year for the number of days applicable to the current year.

Restricted Assets

Restricted proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt obligations, restricted funds required to be set aside for restricted
purposes which cannot be used for routine operations are classified as restricted assets since their exclusive use is limited by
applicable bond covenants and other legal indentures.

Fixed Assets/Utility Plant In Service

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets associated with a fund are determined by the fund's
measurermnent focus. All fixed assets of the City used in governmental fund type operations {other than those recorded in
proprietary funds), are general fixed assets. These assets belong to the City as a whole rather than to any one of the City's
individual funds and are accounted for by placing them in a single, self-balancing group of accounts called the General Fixed
Assets Account Group. The acquisition of these assets by the City is accounted for as an expenditure in the fund in which
it is made and also, as an increase in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. All purchased fixed assets are recorded at
the historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. All donated fixed assets are capitalized at their
fair market value at the date of donation. Certain "public domain" infrastructure fixed assets such as roads, bridges,
sidewalks, curbs, and drainage systems are capitalized in the accounting records. No depreciation has been taken on the
general fixed assets,

Proprietary fund fixed assets, including utility plant in service, are stated at historical or estimated historical cost, The costs
of additions, replacements, and renewals of units of property are appropriately capitalized. The cost (estimated, if not
known) of units of property retired, less net salvage, is charged to accurnulated depreciation and the appropriate asset account.
Donated assets are capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated. Maintenance and repairs of property and
replacements and renewals of items determined to be less than units of property, are charged to operating expenses.
Construction period interest is capitalized net of interest earned on unexpended construction funds in accordance with the
applicable provisions of Financial Accounting Standard Number 62, and therefore, depreciated over the remaining useful life
of the related asset. No interest cost relating to construction has been capitalized during the current fiscal year.

Depreciation is provided for by utilization of the straight-line method (half-year convention in year of acquisition) calculated
on a service-life basis to amortize the cost of the asset over their economic estimated useful lives which are as follows:

Buildings . ... 50  years
Improvements other than buildings . . ..................... 10-50  years
Machinery and equipment . .. ...... ..ot 330 years

Unamortized Debt Discount and Issue Costs

Bond discounts and debt issuance costs for the proprietary fund type are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds
using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Unamortized bond discounts are presented
in aggregate on the financial statements as a reduction of the carrying cost of the related long-term debt. Unamortized debt
issuance costs are presented as other assets.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED)

Payroll and Compensated Absences

The portion of employees payroll costs paid subsequent to year-end attributable to services performed prior to year-end,
including accumulated unpaid vacation and sick-leave, is recorded and recognized as a liability. Since governmental fund
balance sheets reflect current liabilities, only the current portion of the liability is reported in the governmenta] fund. The
remainder of the liability is recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

Employee vacation leave is based upon the number of years of employment with the City and a portion must be used as time
off annually and the remainder can be used as time off or accrued. The maximum amount accrued varies with the general
and fire personnel and the police personnel, 90 days and 93.5 days, respectively. Upon termination, the employee receives
a cash benefit equal to the number of days accrued based on the employee's current wage rate.

Sick leave is granted to all full time employees. General and fire personnel can accumulate, at a rate of one day per month,
up to a maximum of 90 days. Upon retirernent or death, employees are paid 100% of their accumulated unpaid sick leave.
Upon resignation, only those employees with 15 years of service are paid 50% of their accumnulated unpaid sick leave. Police
personnel are granted extended leave to be used for illnesses involving absences of three or more days. The extended leave
accrues at a rate of four hours per month, There is no maximum accumulated amount, however payment is based on the
number of years of service with a maximum of 825 hours,

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues represent revenues which have been recorded as deferred (unearned) revenues until they become
"available" for revenue recognition. The deferred revenues in the General Fund represent delinquent unpaid taxes and
occupational license revenues received in advance of their effective dates.

Long-Term Debt Accounting :

The General Long-Term Debt Account Group was established for the purpose of recording and fairly presenting the City's
long-term debt at any time from date of issuance until the debt is finally retired. All long-term liabilities (other than those
recorded in the proprietary funds), are general long-term debt. These liabilities belong to the City as a whole and are
accounted for by placing them in a single self-balancing group of accounts called the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group. Long-term debt expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations is recorded and serviced in those funds.

Fund Equity

Contributions of capital to proprietary funds from any source received are recognized as nonexchange transactions and
appropriately recorded separately as in increase in retained eamings in the City’s enterprise funds. Reserves represent those
portions of fund balance/retained earnings which must be segregated for some future use and which are, therefore, not
available for further appropriation or expenditure, The description of each reserve indicates the purpose for which it was

intended.

Property Taxes ,

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal and school district property
taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Finance Director. The laws of the state
regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide. State statutes permit
municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills,

Property taxes are levied November 1st of each year and payable from November through March, with a discount available
for payment prior to March 1st (4% in November, 3% in December, 2% in January, and 1% in February). All unpaid taxes
are delinquent as of April 1st of the following year. During April and May, a listing of parcels of property with unpaid taxes
is compiled and advertised. On June 1st (the lien date) tax certificates are sold on all real estate parcels with unpaid real
property taxes. A court order is obtained authorizing the seizure and sale of personal property if the taxpayer fails to pay the
delinquent personal property taxes by June 1st. Delinquent unpaid tax collections may remain uncollected for several years.
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No allowance for uncollectible taxes is recognized since all unpaid amounts will eventually be recovered through tax
certificate sales proceeds or from foreclosure on assessed property. All delinquent past due amounts (which are measurable
but not available as of the end of the fiscal year) are recognized as deferred revenue untit collected.

Interfund Transfers and Transactions
Transfers are recognized in the accounting period in which the interfund receivable and payable arise. Interfund transactions

are recorded as corresponding increases and/or decreases in each fund's equity in pooled cash, or as follows:

Quasi-External Transactions - Transactions which are treated as revenues, expenditures, or expenses if they involve
organizations external to the governmental unit are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses in the fund

involved, and

Reimbursements - Transactions which constitute reimbursements of a fund for expenditures or expenses initially
made from it, which are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of the expenditure or expense in the fund that is reimbursed, and

Residual Equity Transfers - Transactions which constitute nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between
funds are accounted for as additions to and deductions from fund balances which are extraneous to normal

operations; and

Operating Transfers - All other interfund transfers are treated as a separate item in each fund's statement of
revenues, expenditures or expenses and changes in fund balance if they are for the purpose of shifting resources from
a fund legally required to receive the revenue to a fund authorized to expend the revenue.

Risk Management
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and

omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, all of which is satisfactorily insured by general liability insurance.
Commercial insurance policies are also obtained for all other risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and employee
health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage
in any of the past three years,

Use of Estimates )
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates
assumed in preparing the financial statements.

Memorandum Only - Total Columns '
Total columns on the Combined Financial Statements - Overview are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they

are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these colurnns do not present financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This data is not corparable to a
consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

Comparative Data/Reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to provide
an understanding of changes in the City's financial position and operations. However, comparative data have not been
presented in all statements because their inclusion would make certain statements unduly complex and difficult to understand.
Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s

presentation.
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NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except the pension trust funds. Each fund
type’s portion of this pool is included on the combined balance sheet in “cash and cash equivalents.” Earnings onpooled cash
and investments are allocated to participating funds on a monthly basis based on each fund’s investment in the pool. In
addition, investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust
funds are held separately from those of other City funds.

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, (The Florida Security for Public Deposits Act), the
State of Florida, Department of Insurance, Bureau of Collateral Securities, and the Department of Treasury have established
specific requirements relative to security and collateralization for public deposits. Accordingly, banks qualifying as a public
depository in the State of Florida must adopt the necessary procedures outlined in these statutes and meet all of the
requirements of this chapter to be designated by the State Treasurer as eligible to receive deposits from municipal depositors.
Collateral having a market value equal to 50% of the average daily balance for each month of all public deposits in excess
of any applicable depository insurance is required to be pledged or deposited with the State Treasurer to secure such deposits.
Additional collateral, up to a maximum of 125% may be required if deemed necessary under the conditions set forth in the
Act. Securities eligible to be pledged as collateral are generally limited to obligations of the United States government and
any state thereof and are held in the name of the State Treasurer's office. Compliance with the provisions of Chapter 280,
F.S., is monitored by the Department of Insurance.

Depaosits

At September 30, 2002, the carrying amount of the City's deposits, including money market funds with financial institutions,
was ($451,077) and the financial institution balances totaled $319,065. The bank balances are insured by federal depository
insurance and secured in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Florida Security for Deposits Act for those amounts
identified below as *“insured.” The money market funds held by trustees in the Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Trust
and the Municipal Firefighters’ Pension Trust are uninsured, uncollateralized funds. Included in the carrying amount of the
these funds is $1,936 in petty cash, change funds, and undeposited receipts.

The deposits are held in three financial institutions at September 30, 2002 as follows:

Carrying Bank
Amount Balance Fund
Insured (FDIC) ..............coiitt $ (740,446) $ 29,697 . Pooled Cash
Insured (FDIC) .. ... .ooi i 22,110 22,110 Law Enforcement
Insured (FDIC) ... ... .o 2,340 2,340 Fire Pension
Uninsured:
Uncollateralized ................... 202,654 202,654 Police Pension
Uncollateralized ................... 60,328 60,328 Fire Pension
Cashfunds ........... .. i, 1,936 1.936 Various
Totaldeposits .. ....ooveve i $_(451.07D $_319.065
Investments

The City's investment policies are governed by state statutes and local ordinances. The basic allowable investment
instruments include: Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund; negotiable direct obligations of, or obligations the
principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the U.S. Government; interest bearing time deposits or
savings accounts in banks organized under the laws of this state, in national banks organized under the laws of the United
States and doing business and situated in this state, in savings and loan associations which are under state supervision or in
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federal savings and loan associations located in this state and organized under federal law and federal supervision; money
market accounts that invest in U.S. Government obligations; obligations of Federal Farm Credit Banks, the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, including Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation participation certificates; or the Federal
Home Loan Bank or its district banks or obligations guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association;
obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association including Federal National Mortgage Association participation
certificates and rmortgage pass-through certificates guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association.

The City is a member of the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund that is administered by the State Board of
Administration of Florida (SBA). This fund is a 2a-7 like fund which has the characteristics of a money market fund. Thus
s cost is its fair value. Funds that have not been transferred to the state investment pool are placed in an ovemnight
repurchase agreement. The repurchase agreement balance is collateralized with securities held by the City’s agent in the
agent’s name.

The City’s investments are categorized into the following three categories of credit risk:

»  Category ! includes investments that are insured, registered, or for which the securities are held by the City or
its agent in the City's name.

»  Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the banks' trust
departments or agents in the City's name,

*  Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the banks, or
by their trust departments or agents but not in the City's name.

The City's investments are categorized as follows:
Carrying Fair

Type of Investment Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Value Value

U.S. Government agency securities ... . 3 0 296,663 0 296,663 296,663

Repurchase agreement .............. 0 0 1,685,000 1,685000 1,685,000
Pension Fund investments with trustee:

U.S. Government agency securities . . . 0 0 1,154,921 1,154,921 1,154,921

U.S. Corporate debt securities ....... 0 0 1,456,407 1,456,407 1,456,407

1.S. Corporate equity securities . . . . .. 0 0 _ 3,033,110 _3.033.110 _3.,033.110

Subtotal ..................... $ 0 296,663 _ 7329439 7,626,101 7,626,101

Investments not subject to categorization:
Local Government Surplus Funds

Trust Fund Investment Pool:
Restricted ... ... i e e 1,625,032 1,625,032
UmrestriCted . ..ot e e e 6772081 6772081
Ot i e e $16,023.214 16,023,214
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A reconciliation of cash and investments to the financial statements is as follows:

Carrying value of deposits . . .. .. ..o e e e 5 (451,077
Carrying value of investments . .. ...t e 16023214
Totalpernotedetail ... ... .. e $15,572,137
Combined cashand cashequivalents _...... .. ... ... ... it 7,945,675
Restricted cashand cashequivalents . .. ... ... .o et 1,625,032
Combined INVESHIENtS ... ..\ttt it e 6,001,430
Total per combined financial statements . ............. ... . o 315,572,137

A summary of cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the statements of cash flows is as follows at September 30:

2002 2001
Enterprise Funds:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents ....... ... ... o i i, $ 3,792,787 3,557,591
Restricted cash and cashequivalents ...... ... oo 1625032 875.952
Total cash and cash equivalents, endofyear .......... ... .. ... oot 3 5417819 4433543
NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES ~ NET
The City’s net receivable are composed of the following at September 30, 2002:
Governmental Funds Enterprise Funds
Stormwater Water and Solid
(General Drainage Sewer Waste
Delinquent taxes receivable ... ........ ... ... .... $ 44,363 0 0 0
Accomntsreceivable ... ... . . i i, 264,462 43,543 308,996 132,241
Accrued imterest . .. ... .. ... 1,375 0 0 0
IR 11 54,308 0 0 0
: 364,508 43,543 322,036 132,241
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts ............. 0 (9.470) {66.937) (31,643)
Net accounts receivable . ... ... oenoon. $ 364,508 34,073 242 059 100,598
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NOTE 4 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
The City’s Individual fund interfund receivables and payables are composed of the following at September 30, 2002:

Interfund Interfund

Fund DueFrom _ Due To

Due to/from other funds:

General Fund ... ... . i i § 7,641 4,495

Special Revenue Fund — Stormwater Drainage .. .......o.oovurennn.n. ... 766 0

Special Revenue Fund — Local Law Enforcement Block Grant ............. 0 1,395

Special Revenue Fund — Community Development Block Grant ............ 0 6,246

Enterprise Fund - Solid Waste Utility Fund ................c.ccovven..... 3729 0

Totals . 3 12,136 12,136
Advance to/from other funds:

General Fund .. ... o 3 59,700 0

Special Revenue Fund — Community Redevelopment .................... 0 59,700

Totals 3 59,700 59,700

NOTE 5 - FIXED ASSETS
A summary of changes in general fixed assets for the year is as follows:

09/30/01 Additions Deletions 09/30/02

Land ... 3 1471122 417,459 0 1,888,581
Builldings .............................. 3,648,857 6,640 0 3,655,497
Improvements other than buildings .......... 8,275,824 536,208 0 8,812,032
Machinery and equipment ................. 2,744,211 248,863 59,690 2,933,384
Construction work in progress .............. 0 344,297 0 344 297

Totals ... . $ 16,140014 1,553,467 59.690 17,633,791
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

General Long-Term Debt

The City’s general long-term debt consists of the following as of September 30, 2001:

Notes Payable to:
County of Volusia, Florida;

Noninterest bearing note payable dated January 24, 1995; $8,002 due semi-annually

through 2004, with interest imputed at 5%; unsecured (anticipated to be paid

with unencumbered General Fund revenue) .......covveiiiienin i biines
State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection-Clean Water State Revolving
Fund Loan Agreement-3.27% construction loan ($363,664); a 3.16% loan
($926,500) for local stormwater pollution control and drainage improvements dated
January 30, 2001 and September 10, 2001, respectively; and a 3.09% loan

($1,579,330) for stormwater improvements; combined total payments of $99,038

due sem-annually on January 15 and July 15 commencing on January 15, 2004 through
2024; secured with stormwaler management service charges ... ... ool a

Sun Bank of Volusia County:

5.30% Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Note, Series 2001 dated February 20, 2001; $23,692
due semi-annually through 2006; secured by all non-ad valorem revenues of the city .. ..
4.84% Utility Service Tax Revenue Note, Series 1998A, dated April 14, 1998; 78,687

due semi-annually through 2008; secured by utility service tax revenues

907,507

117,896

— 151,817

Total N0tes PaYADIE . . ..ottt 1,807,212
Obligation for compensated absenCes ... ..o i e 526,938
Total general long-termdebt . ...t $_ 2334170
A summary of changes in general long-term debt for the year is as follows:
Balances Balances
09/30/01 Additions Deletions 09/30/02
Notes Payable:
County of Volusia, Florida . . ........... g 43,937 0 13,945 29,992
Florida Department of Environmental
Protection-Clean Water State Revolving
FundLoan ............ccovviiiit 254,562 652,945 0 907,507
Sun Bank of Volusia County:
5.30% promissorynote ...l 177,079 0 59,183 117,896
4.55% promissorynote .............. 27,591 0 27,591 0
4.84% Utility Service Tax Revenue Note,
Series 1998A . ... ... ... ...l 868,070 0 116,253 751,817
Obligation for compensated absences ........ 500,658 26,300 0 526,958
Totals .. e $ 1871897 679,245 216,972 2,334,170
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT - (CONTINUED)

A summary of the City’s aggregate debt service requirements to maturity on general long-term debt obligation (notes payabie)
is as follows:

Fiscal Volusia FDEP SunTrust SunTrust

Year County SRF Loan 5.30% 4.84% Total
09/30/03 ........... ... 16,003 0 47,384 157,374 220,761
09/30/04 ... ... ... ...... 16,003 198,076 47,384 157,374 418,837
09/30/05 ............... 0 198,076 47,384 157,374 402,834
09/30/06 ............... 0 198,076 10,485 157,374 365,935
09/30/07 ...t 0 198,076 0 157,374 355,450
Thereafter .............. 0 219,155 0 79.961 299.116
Total .................. 32,006 1,011,459 152,637 866,831 2,062,933
Interest ................ (2.014) (103,952) {(34741) {115.014) (255,721)
Netamount ............. 29,992 907,507 117,896 751,817 1,807,212

Enterprise Fund Long-Term Debt
The City’s enterprise fund (Water and Sewer Utility Fund) long-term debt consists of the following as of September 30, 2002:

Water and Sewer Systermn Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 - - 2.00%

10 5.00%, due serially t0 2022 .. .. e $ 14,030,000
Less: curment Matirities . .. ...ttt ittt e e { (1}
Long-termrevenue bonds payable ... i e e e 14,030,000
Plus: unamortized debt premium .. .. ... e 4,901
Less: deferred amount onadvancerefunding ....... ... ... il i {1.553,126)
Netlong-termbonded debt . ... it i e e 12,481,775

State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection-Clean Water State Revolving
Fund Loan Agreement-3.11% construction loan for wastewater infiltration and inflow
correction project, dated July 28, 1998, in the amount of $2,647,500, due semi-

annually beginning June 2001 through December 2020 ..., ... ... ... ... ... 2,288,733
Less: currentmaturities .. ... ..ottt e e i {89.956)
Net long-termnotes payable ... ...t e 2,198.777
Total long-term debt-net . .. ... e e e e §_14,680,552

A summary of the annual debt service and mandatory term bond amortization requirements to maturity is as follows:

Bonds Note Total
Fiscal year ending September 30,2003 ............... $ 433,111 186,240 619,351
Fiscal year ending September 30,2004 . .............. 1,067,532 186,240 1,253,772
Fiscal year ending September 30,2005 ............... 1,067,532 186,240 1,253,772
Fiscal year ending September 30,2006 ............... 1,066,044 186,240 1,252,284
Fiscal year ending September 30,2007 ............... 1,066,656 186,240 1,252,896
Thereafter ...t i 16,964,014 2,001,484 18,965,498
Total requirements ..........c.oiiiiinniieinn.n. 21,664,889 2,932,684 24,597,573
\ Less: amounts representing interest .................. (7.634.889) (643,951) _(8.278,840)
' Netprincipal amount. ... ......cooveiii i, $_14.030,000 2,288,733 16,318,733
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CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT - (CONTINUED)

The authorization for the Series 2002 bonds provides that the City will not issue additional obligations unless they are payable
on a parity with the Series 2002 bonds and only upon the conditions and within the limitations of the authorizing resolution.
The bonds are payable from and secured by a first lien upon and pledge of the net revenues derived from the operation of the
City’s water and sewer system. The bonds do not constifute general indebtedness of the City, and the City is not obligated
to levy any taxes for the payment thereof.

Under the terms of its bond resolution and revenue note obligations, the City has agreed to maintain certain restricted funds
and to comply with the covenants contained in such agreements which require specific actions to be taken by the City. The
resolution also provides that monies on deposit in the various bond accounts may be invested in permitted investments, the
definition of which includes various securities backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S8. Governinent or its agencies,
depository accounts fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporation, commercial paper, money market funds, and bankers’ acceptances meeting requirements defined in the bond
resolution, units of participation in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, and any other investments allowed by

Florida law.

On August 6, 2002, the City issued $14,030,000 in Water and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, with
an average interest rate of 4.51% to advance refund all of the outstanding Series 1992 Revenue Bonds maturing on October
1, 2003 through October 1, 2022, which were called for redemption on October 1, 2002 in the principal amount of
$12,770,000 with an average interest rate of 6.12%. The net proceeds of $13.1 million (after payment of 914,198 in
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) plus $258,988 of Series 1992 debt service fund monies were used to
purchase $13,379,806 in U.S. government securities at the date of closing. The U.S. government securities were deposited
in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the Series 1992 bonds through
October 1, 2002, when the bonds were called for complete redemption. As a result, the Series 1992 bonds are considered
to be defeased and the liability for those certificates has been removed at August 6, 2002,

Although the advance refunding resulted in the recognition of a deferred loss on advance refunding in the amount of
$1,589,322 (which will be amortized over the life of the refunding certificates) for the year ended September 30, 2002, the
City in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by almost $1.0 million over the next 20 years and obtained an
economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments, adjusted for old and new
sinking funds on hand} of $645,235.

The note payabie to the State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection, State Revolving Fund Loan are secured
by pledged revenues of the City; however, the lien on the pledged revenues is subordinate to the right of payment and security
to the Revenue Bonds, Series 2002.

NOTE 7 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The City maintains two enterprise funds which provide water and sewer services and solid waste collection services to citizens
of the community. Individual segment information for the year ended September 30, 2002, is as follows:

Water and Solid
Sewer Waste Total
OperatinZ TEVEIILIE . ... vivtitt e e i iaaaaeene s 5 3,904,812 1,482,494 5,387,300
Operating expense: '
Depreciation . ...t e 780,725 9,522 790,247
10737 O 1,676,619 1,098,986 2,775,605
Operating inCome ... ... ittt it i 1,447,468 373,986 1,821,454
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NOTE 7 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS -~ (CONTINUED)

Water and Solid
Sewer Waste Total
Nonoperating revente (EXpenses) .. ...vvever i rurenn... {606,355) 23,273 (583,079)
Operating Tansfers .. ..., o it e e (450,000} {250,000) (700,000)
Netincome (10ss) . ... it iiir e, 391,113 147,262 538,375
Capital contributions .. .. ovvtt e e e e e 502,506 0 502,506
Networkingcapital ...... .. .. ... .. i iiiiiinnnnn. 3,162,379 828,642 3,991,021
Capital assetacquigitions ............covviieinn s, 173,496 1,129 174,625
Capital asset retirements . ... .. ... ... 30,808 4,498 35,306
Total assets . ... vttt e e 23,509,959 961,523 24,471,482
Total liabilities . .........ou ittt 15,747,652 91,019 15,838,671
Fund equity . ... e e 7,762,307 870,504 8,632,811

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS
General Employees - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description. (Pre-01/01/96 general employees) The City contributes to the Florida Retirement System (the “FRS”) of
the State of Florida, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement system created in December, 1970, that
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for municipalities and other qualifying political subdivisions in the
State of Florida. The pension plan, which is administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration, Division
of Retirernent, provides retirement and disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Al
retirement legislation must comply with Article X, Section 14 of the State Constitution and with Part VII, Chapter 121, F.S.
Both of these provisions require that any increase in retirement benefits must be funded concurrently on an actuariaily sound
basis. The Florida Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to Florida Retirement System,
Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, Cedars Executive Center, Building C, 2639 North Monroe Street,
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1560, or calling 850-488-5706.

Funding Policy. The FRS funding policy provides for required monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined
rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll are adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates, established by state law, are determined using the entry-
age actuarial funding method. Ifan unfunded actuarial liability reemerges, future plan benefit changes, assumption changes,
and methodology changes are amortized within 30 years, using level dollar amounts. Except for gains reserved for rate
stabilization, it is anticipated future actuarial gains and losses are amortized on a rolling 10% basis, as a level dollar amount.

The required contributions to the plan for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $85,244,
$114,100, and $136,782, respectively. The required contribution percentages for qualifying employee compensation were
5.76% for the period from July, 2002 through September, 2002, 7.30% for the plan year ended June 30, 2002, 9.15% for the
plan year ended June 30, 2001, and 10.15% for the plan year ended June 30, 2000. There were no employee contributions

made during these years.

Defined Contribution Plan
The City contributes to the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund, a defined contribution plan which is administered by

Florida League of Cities, Inc., P. O. Box 1757, Tallahassee, FL 32302-1757. Under Resolution No. 61 and Ordinance No.
2417, as amended, the City established this plan for all full time employees hired on or after January 1, 1996 by revoking its
participation in the Florida Retirement System pursuant to Chapter 95-338, Laws of Florida with respect to such employees.
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NOTE 8§ - PENSION PLANS - (CONTINUED)

The City, as the sponsoring employer, is responsible for amending pension provisions and contribution requirements for the
plan. The plan was amended during the year to include recent income tax law provisions applicable to employee benefit plans
that were applicable to the plan. The City has the power to amend plan provisions at any time.

All qualified employees at least 18 years of age become eligible to participate in the plan on the first date of the month
following their date of employment. Employees are required to contribute 2% of their salary and can voluntarily contribute
up to an additional 8% of their compensation on the date of employment. The City contributes 10% of the employees’ salary
to the Plan. To accommodate both employer and employee contributions the City utilizes a Section 457 deferred
compensation plan to receive the mandatory 2% employee contribution and employee elective deferrals to the Plan. A
Section 401(a) plan is used to account for the employer contributions.

Employees immediately vest in the required and elective deferral contributions made to the Plan. A graded vesting schedule
for employer contributions provides for 100% vesting after 10 years of service. The vested portion of accounts or
contributions to the plan is available to the participants immediately upon termination of service for those participants who
terminate their employment prior to five years of service. Normal retirement benefits are available upon attaining age 60.
The plan does not provide for an early retirement date prior to the normal retirement date of age 60.

The required employer contributions to the Plan for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $82,841,
$51,855, and $41,330, respectively. Employee contributions to the Plan for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001,
and 2000 were $38,450, $14,397, and $11,244, respectively.

As a part of the plan, account forfeitures are accumulated to offset the cost of future City contribution requirements. As of
September 30, 2002, cumulative plan forfeitures totaled $67,338, all of which may be used to reduce the City’s portion of
its subsequent years’ contribution requirements.

Police Officers and Firefighters:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Plan Description. The City maintains and administers separate single-employer pension plans for all eligible police officers
and firefighters, which assets are included in the Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund (the "Police Plan") and
Municipal Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund (the "Fire Plan”). Both Plans issue publicly available stand-alone financial
reports that include financial statements and required supplementary information for the plans. The Police Plan report may
be obtained by writing to City of Holly Hill, Florida Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund, Post Office Box 251485, Holly
Hill, FL 32125 or calling (386) 248-9475. The Fire Plan report may be obtained by writing to City of Holly Hill, Florida
Firefighters’ Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, 1065 Ridgewood Avenue, Holly Hill, FL 32117-2898 or calling (386)

248-9473.

All certified police officers and firefighters are eligible to participate in the respective systems after employment. Benefits
vest with eligible employees after ten years of participation. The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable
are provided in the various acts of the Florida Legislature, which created the funds, including subsequent amendments thereto.
More information relating to the funding methods, determination of benefits, and permissible investments for the Police Plan
and the Fire Plan can be found in Chapters 185 and 175, Florida Statutes, respectively. These statues provide, in general, that
funds are to be accumulated from employee contributions, City contributions, State appropriations and income from
investments from accumulated funds. The act also provides that should the accumulated funds at any time be insufficient to
meet and pay the benefits due, the City shall supplement the funds by an appropriation from current funds or from any
revenues which may be lawfully used for said purposes in an amount sufficient to make up the deficiency. The investments
of the two funds are administered , managed, and operated by their respective boards of trustees using the services of the City
staff, local financial institutions, and third-party fund custodians.
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS - (CONTINUED)

Full-time, uniformed police officers are eligible to participate in the Police Plan upon employment by the City, Full-time,
uniformed firefighters are eligible to participate in the Fire Plan upon employment with the City. Employees vest with full
benefits after 10 years of service. Normal retirement occurs for police officers at the earlier of age 55 and 10 years of credited
service or 20 years of credited service regardless of age but no earlier than age 55 for vested terminations. Normal retirement
for firefighters occurs at age 50. An independent actuary appointed by the Board of Trustees actuarially determines benefits
to be paid to retirees. Current membership in the pension plans is composed of the following:

Police Fire
Plan Plan

Participant data as of October 1, 2001, the
date of the most recent actuarial valuation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently

receivingbenefits ... ..................... 11
Vested terminated employees . ............... ' 0 1
Active employees:
Fullyvested ............................ 9 1
Nonvested ............................. 16 11
Total participants . ................ .. ... ........, 36 20

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Plans. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized in presenting the pension
trust funds combining balance sheet and combining statement of revenue, expenses and changes in fund balance. Plan
receivables are short term and consist of contributions due from the City, State and/or from plan members. Plan liabilities
would generally include benefits due to plan members and beneficiaries and accrued investment and administrative expenses
and are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plans. The difference between total plan assets
and total plan liabilities at the reporting date are captioned net assets held in trust for pension benefits reserved for employees’
pension benefits and represent the net assets held in trust for pension benefits.

Investments are reported at fair value and are managed by third party money managers. Investments that do not have an
established market are reported at estimated fair value. Performance reporting, administrative expenses, and the City’s asset
valuation are based on the custodians’ determination of value.

Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made. The City provides contributions to the Police Plan and Fire Plan under
the authority of Chapters 185 and 175, Florida Statutes, respectively and pursuant to City ordinances. Employees covered
under the plans are required to make contributions of 11.2% [Police Plan] and 10.0% [Fire Plan] of their compensation. The
City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the Plans based on the funding amounts determined
by the Plans’ actuaries.

The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 27 on pension accounting and reporting. This statement requires the computation
of a net pension obligation (NPO) or asset which would result if the City’s contributions to the pension funds did not equal
the annual pension cost as computed by the planactuaries. During the cutrent year, the City evaluated both plans to determine
the net pension obligation or assets at the end of 2002.
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS - (CONTINUED)

The City’s annual pension cost and net pension obligations to the Police and Fire Plans were as follows:

Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund

Annual Percentage Net

Pension of APC Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
09/30/01 ... 0 100.0% $ 0
09/30/00 ... . i 0 100.0% 0
09/30/99 .. .. ... 0 100.0% 0

The Annual Pension Cost (APC) is based on the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) as determined by the
actuarial valuation each year. The APC is reduced by funds received from the State of Florida that go directly
into the Plan as stipulated by Ch. 185, F.S. For the past three years the City has not had to contribute to the
Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund above the amount covered by the State of Florida Casualty
Insurance Premium Tax monies. Accordingly, the City’s APC is zero, as indicated above.

Municipal Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund

Annual Percentage Net

Pension of APC Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC} Coniributed Obligation
09/30/G1 ... e $ 42,383 125% $ (56,682)
09/30/00 ... e 41,977 100% (39,318)
09/30/99 ... 54,940 101% (39,956)

The Fire Plan has been subject to the minimum funding standards since the adoption of the “Florida Protection of Public
Employee Retirement Benefits Act” (part VII, Chapter 112, Florida Statutes) in 1980 Accordingly, the City has funded the
actuarially determined required contributions for all years from October 1, 1987, through the transition date, October 1, 1997.

Thus, the Net Pension Obligation on October 1, 1997 is $-0-.

The development of the Net Pension Obligation (NPO) in the Fire Plan through October 1, 2001 is as follows:

09/30/98 09/30/99 09/30/00 09/30/01

Actuarially determined contribution ..  § 49,568 54,940 41,977 42,883
Intereston NPO ................. ¥ (2,966) (2,977) (2,949)
Adjustment ... ... oo 0 3.597 3,633 3577
Annual PensionCost .. ............ 49,568 - 35,571 42,615 43,511
Contributionsmade .. ............. 89,109 55986 41,977 60,875
Increase inNPO ................. (39,541) (415) 638 (17,364)
NPO - beginning of year ........... 0 (39,541) (39,956) (39.318)
NPO-endofyear ................ § (39541 {39,956) (35.318) (56,682)
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS - (CONTINUED)

The actuarial valuations for both plans were prepared in accordance with GASB Statements No. 25 and 27. Significant
actuarial assumptions used in the valuations for each plan are as follows:

Police Fire
Plan Plan
Contribution rates as of 09/30/01:
City and State Contributions ... ............... 8.2% 24.2%
CityforMembers .......................... 8.0% 0.0%
PlanMembers ........ ... ... .. 11.2% 10.0%
Actuarial valuation dates . ....................... 10/01/01 10/01/01
Actuarial costmethod .......................... Aggregate Aggregate
Amortizationmethod .. ........ ... ... . ... ... N/A N/A
Remaining amortizationperiod . .................. N/A N/A
Asset valnationmethod ......................... Investments return  Investments return

over last four years over last four years
Actuarial assumptions:

Investmentrate ofreturn ... .................. 8.0% 7.5%
Projected salary increases * . .. ................ 6.0% 5.0%
*Includes inflationat ........................ 3.0% 2.5%
Cost of living adjustments . ................... 0.0% 0.0%

N/A - The amortization method and period are not applicable for this plan since the Aggregate Actuarial Cost
Method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial labilities.

Related Party Transactions. The City held no securities which were included in the assets of the Police Plan or Fire Plan,

Required Supplementary Information. The required supplementary information pursuant to GASB No. 25 is contained in
Schedules 1 and 2 presented immediately following these notes to the financial statements.

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The City offers its City Manager participation in a Money Purchase Plan and Trust, created in accordance with Section 401 (a)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The assets of this plan are administered by the International City Managers Association
Retirement Corporation. Upon separation from service for reasons of death, disability or attainment of age 59% (normal
retirement age) the participant may elect to commence receiving benefits which equal accumulated employers' contributions
plus earnings thereon. All benefits vest with the employee at the date of contribution. The City contributes 14.26% of the
participant’s salary to the Plan. For the year ended September 30, 2002, the City’s covered payroll was $73,369 and
contributions were $10,462.

NOTE 10 - ACCOUNTING CHANGES

The City has restated its prior year balances by removing the accounting for plan assets ($202,833), net assets ($161,645)
and changes innet assets {$22,628) relating to the General Employees’ Retirement Trust Fund, since the City has no fiduciary
or managerial control over the plan that are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants. The net assets invested in
the plan are excluded from the financial reporting under the provisions of GASB Statements No, 25 and 32. Note disclosures
pertaining to the defined contribution plan established as the General Employees’ Retirement Trust for those employees hired
on or after January 1, 1996 are contained in Note 8.

34



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2002
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NOTE 11 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The Local Law Enforcement Trust Fund has a deficit fund balance as of September 30, 2002 in the amount 0of $1,700 as a
result of a deferral of revenue reported under the provisions of the U.S. Department of Justice Local Law Enforcement Block
Grant, wherein the City is granted a two year period in which to spend the fands advanced by the grantor agency. It is
anticipated that in the next year the City will report the remainder of the income when the expenditures are incurred and due
to the provisions of this award, allowing for spending of interest income earned on the funds advance, it is expected this will
relieve the fund deficit,

NOTE 12 - LEGAL MATTERS

The City is engaged in routine litigation incidental to the conduct of their respective business and municipal affairs. In the
opinion of their Counsel, no legal proceedings are pending against them, not covered by insurance, which would inhibit their
ahility to perform their operations or materially affect their financial condition.

NoTE 13 - COMMITMENTS

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally
the federal and state governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability
of the applicable fund(s). The amount, if any, of expenditures from current or prior years which may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial..

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, all of which is satisfactorily insured by general liability insurance.
Cormmmercial insurance policies are also obtained for all other risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and employee
health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage
in any of the past three years.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule 1
SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Septernber 30, 2002

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Unfunded

{Assets in

Actuarial Excess of)

Accrued Unfunded AAlasa

Actuarial Liability (Assets in Percentage

Actuarial Value of (AAL) Excess of) Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (€) {(b-a)/c)
Municipal Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund
10/01/1994 31,080,566 $1,080,566 30 100.00% $305,913 0.00%
10/61/1996 31,399,697 $1,399,697 30 100.00% $266,576 0.00%
10/01/1997 51,719,631 $1,719,631 $0 100.00% $306,325 0.00%
10/01/1998 31,831,190 $1,831,190 50 100.00% $326,669 0.00%
10/01/1999 31,964,236 $1,964,236 50 100.00% $381,325 0.00%
10/G1/2000 32,044,008 $2,044,098 30 100.00% $339,489 0.00%
10/02/2001 $2,089,520 $2,089,520 30 100.00% $402,803 0.00%
Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund

10/01/1993 $3,113,805 33,465,000 $351,195 89.86% $780,593 44.99%
10/01/1996 $3,555,970 33,874,578 $318,608 91.78% $851,576 37.41%
10/01/1997 34,335,919 $4,696,323 $360,404 92.33% $889,439 40.52%
10/01/1998 $4,440,281 $4,654,807 $214,526 95.39% $796,342 26.94%
10/01/1999 34,911,757 $5,060,316 $148,559 97.06% $870,214 17.07%
10/01/2000 $5,500,526 36,064,771 $564,245 90.70% $744,912 75.75%
10/02/2001 35,532,568 $5,532,568 30 100.00% $871,152 0.00%

Source: Foster & Foster, Inc., Actuaries
Valuations dated 10/01/2001
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule 2
SCHEDULES OF CONTRIBUTIONS OF EMPLOYER AND OTHER CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES

September 30, 2002

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Fiscal Annual

Year Required Employer State Total Percentage

Ended Contribution Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributed

Municipal Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund

09/30/1995 399,442 $85,580 518,124 $103,704 104.29%
09/30/1996 395,129 $73,256 $22,7590 $96,046 100.96%
09/30/1997 $80,281 $59,609 $21,272 $80,281 100.00%
09/30/1998 387,446 $89,109 337,878 $126,987 145.22%
09/30/1999 $83,017 $55,985 $28,077 * $84,062 101.26%
09/30/2000 $70,054 541,977 $28,077 * $70,054 106.00%
09/30/2001 $70,960 $60,875 528,077 * $88,952 125.36%

* "Frozen" per Chapter 175, Florida Statutes, as amended

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund

09/30/1995 378,152 $34,258 348,205 $82,463 105.32%
(9/30/1596 332,913 512,890 347,683 360,573 184.04%
09/30/1997 $0 $0 $51,190 $51,190 100.00%
09/30/1998 50 $0 $51,839% $51,839 100.00%
09/30/1999 $12,003 30 348,760 $48,760 100.00%
09/30/2000 $26,549 30 $45,177 345,177 100.00%
09/30/2001 35,651 $0 $45,613 345,613 100.00%

Source: Foster & Foster, Inc., Actuaries
Valuations dated 10/01/2001
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COMBINING, INDIVIDUAL FUND
AND
ACCOUNT GROUP
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements provide a more detailed view of the general-
purpose financial statements presented in the preceding subsection.

Combining statements are presented when there are more than one fund
of a given fund type. Individual fund and account group statements are
presented when there is only one fund of a given type and for the account
group. They are also necessary to present budgetary comparisons.






GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures used to
Jinance the traditional services associated with a municipal government
which are not accounted for in other funds. In the City of Holly Hill, these
services include police and fire protection, street services, parks and
recreation, butlding safety, general administration and any other activity
Jor which a special fund has not been created.






¥
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COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
GENERAL FUND

September 30, 2002 and 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibit A-1
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2002 2001
Assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ....vvvvviciieieireciiiee e resereer e s es s eaee s e s esesene, 2,244,684 2,378,296
INVESHIIBIES 11ierrririicieeiei st scece e rorseesesabs et et seaesnsnveressnsasoseas 296,663 296,542
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible accounts):
DelinQUeNt tAXES. ... v sess st s st st ts s sesoss st cesnerenene 44,363 28,979
ALCCOUIIS Lottt s te st e e se e e ass s e et s ae s et ebeses e e sesees 264,462 385,170
ACCTUEA INEETESE .veirievcieietri e eteveceicr e e sreaseter s s e s s eeeseesenesestseerensesesenres 1,375 247
LIBIIS 11ouitceecirin e rereca et e vererr st e e e e s e et et st entenetesesesessntesbesessensseseesenon 54,308 44,347
Due from other fUNAS ..vvveirrirciiiieiee et eees e e eaees ereesssssessestesseses 7,641 238,161
Advances to Other FUNAS ..ot s e et e e e s s e sessta et e st s, 59,700 59,700
Due from Other ZOVEIMIMIENTS 1viviiivieiieeeeeeeeeeseereeseeseese s esessesssstssessssssst e e oo emeeses 343,527 238,708
TOTAT BSSLLS 1voviviririeiecreimircr et eecees e e e e e esesesee st e s s teseseasseen e ees 3,316,723 3,671,150
Liabilities and Fund Equity:
Liabilities:
ACCOUNLES PAYEDIE 11viiiiiii it seetee et s s e ss et e teeeeeee s 79,326 79,295
ACCTUE HADIIES «.vvvreieesiccecc et seaeeseetrtesesee et e e sesesenessassesesens 188,785 204,107
oue 10 OHEr TUNAS ..ot s s e er e e s s s e ene sesne s et asesssseeeesene. 4,495 0
RefiNAable QEPOSIES .ivvveeiiriieiiee e et s eeese e esesssrsssmsssssssnssses sesessssesssens 1,613 1,892
DIEFEITEA TEVEIIIE ..veveererirei et es et et et es e s es st re e eesssesentsresreseese s 176,747 140,919
Total HADIHHES 11ovveereeece et et eee e s st e e s s e st e s e s s neens 450,966 426,213
Fund Equity:
Fund balance:
Reserved for:
NI CUIMIDTAIICES 11ttt eee e et eeest st e st onestessessotesesteses e esenes 92,719 0
Transportation ([ocal option gas tax FUnds) .....veereoveeceeeeeeereeeeeeeeeee ey 113,832 184,845
Advances 10 OthEr FUNAS ..o.vveee et seseess et es e ssesssestssteane. 59,700 59,700
POLICE @AUCAION w.evivrieoeee et es oo v et atetes e e ee e s s s sees s st s sesaans 21,500 20,621
Unreserved:
URAESIZNALED .vviiiiiec et vee s ee st e et eseseseseeseessassssesseeseesanen 2,578,006 2,979,771
Total fund EQUILY «ovirrei ettt e a e beb et etn o 2,865,757 3,244,937
Total liabilities and fund EQUILY civiiceieevrvre v srevssaenessrensssenes 3,316,723 3,671,150
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COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND Exhibit A-2
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
2002 2001
Revenue:
TAXES +veevtiiineesieieeairbeass et e sss et arbers st et s raeensasese et et e sa R e eE R RS eEertsrerae 3,597,639 4,032,557
Licenses and PEIITIES wv.uvrvrirereii et s b5 e e 247,330 241,509
Intergovernmental ... 1,071,285 1,115,166
Charges fOT SEIVICES wveuuirrrreeriririi i emes bbb s s sn e s naans 133,964 140,734
Fines and fOrFEIIUIES covviiiiiiiiisrerisiereresiere e svessesssearessarasssssrsasanesssssnsasnsassssnreses 77,199 96,481
VIS CEIIATIEOUS 11vvvesiererereisreerrarerenrssssienssbessssssbtessrsraresssssenantasssesranasssiaransassesnaree 131,704 285,042
TOTAl FEVEIUE vvvvvivreiieieiorereinsrsisrmsseesismeeseiseeresiasasessnsisessonessnsanessasnnes snres 5,259,121 5,911,489
Expenditures:
Current;
General SOVEITIMENL ....oivvir i s eenes et ereas 1,644,990 1,327,157
PUDHC SATELY .oveereiiie ettt et 2,633,784 2,726,312
TIABSPOTTALION 11vvvireriiieeeer i e sreses s e bbb e abe b ns s reane 835,439 690,707
CUITUTE/TECTEALION .eovieviveriisserisssrsnretersssssasrasreesssreeer st siabesesaisrasansssssnsssessanasans 772,047 725,538
Debt Service:
Principal FEtTEITIENT cuvesvecisrerer s rereesmrreee e siesi i e ars s sn s bsrs b s erans 216,973 204,596
Interest and fiscal ChATRES v 51,921 58,997
Total eXpendifiles ..o 6,155,154 5,733,307
Excess of revenue over {under) expenditires ..o ecooevcrvcovsrnicinniennn (896,033) 178,182
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt. ..o 0 204,204
Operating ransfers N ... 700,000 690,000
Operating transfers (OUL) .o bbb e (183,147) (2,191
Total other financing sOUICes (MSES) ...occvmerrereiiisiisnsns e 516,853 $92,013
Excess of revenue and other sources over
expenditures and other USES wovvvervn o {379,180) 1,070,195
Fund balance, beginning of Year ......vecorcromiciii i e s 3,244,937 2,174,742
Fund balance, end of YEar ..ot s 2,865,757 3,244.937




STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN Exhibit A-3
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND - (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Revenue:
Taxes:
General property taxes:
Current ad valorem taXe5 .....oovvverenvsnreverens 3 1,480,000 1,496,507 16,507 1,546,488
Delinquent ad valorem taxes ......oeuriineeirnnn 45,000 3,113 {41,887) 44,827
Local option gas taX ..c.ceevevcenivneoninnronciecrneens 154,006 152,638 (1,362) 179,049
2nd Local option gas 12X ......ccoevviserieninnns 115,000 113,754 (1,246} 135,112
Franchise taxes .....coooveeevieceiiiceeericie e cererene e 668,000 576,380 {91,620) 852,863
Utility service taxes ....cocecivvicrcisnicererevnrens 1,202,900 1,255,247 52,347 1,265,733
Total taXes covvvriieni v e 3,664,900 3,597,639 (67,261) 4,024,072
Licenses and permits:
BUSINESS ..ocvvvvevervieririnrresnresressiessinissonssssssnnen 258,000 159,021 (98,979) 155,213
NONDUSINESS vvvevvevrverrveerirersrrsiresrersseesrssssesssen 34,500 88,309 53,809 86,296
Total licenses and permits ....ooovvveieinien. 292,500 247,330 {45,170) 241,509
Intergovernmental Revenue:
Federal Grants:
Department of JUSHCE ..ovvviviiireeiteceeeereene 79,500 85,830 6,330 85,807
Department of Transportation ... 0 0 0 3,660
State Grants:
Department of Business and
Professional Regulation..........coeccoiinnieiinens 0 0 0 6,160
State Shared Revennes:
Municipal two-cent cigarette tax ................. 4,800 0 (4,800) 0
State revenue sharing proceeds ......ovvveeenn. 285,700 305,529 15,829 342,590
Mobile home licenses ..............c.oveirvvvenne, 17,000 18,073 1,073 18,230
Alcoholic beverage Heenses .oevvceevieinns 7,000 7,198 198 6,420
Local government half-cent sales tax .......... 573,000 635,249 62,249 633,216
Motor fuel tax rebate .......o.cvvverecrevsr i 5,200 5,201 1 5,121
Firefighters' supplemental revenue .............. 1,200 600 {600) 1,095
Other Shared Revenues:
County grants ........ s 0 0 0 0
County shared revenues ........ccccoveveeererernnans 13,000 13,604 604 12,867
Total intergovernmental revenue ........... 990,400 1,071,284 80,384 1,115,166
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND - (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibit A-3

2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Charges for services:
General ZOVEIMIMENT ...ccoviimimmisanrsnnn 8,600 9,032 432 7,874
PUBHC SATBLY vvvvrv et 3,000 2,700 (300) 3,180
Transportation ... 30,400 31,566 1,166 29,776
Culture/Tecreation ..o viorrvsseseseesreeseeeens 107,000 90,666 (16,334) 99,904
Total charges for Services .......coivinnnen, 149,000 133,964 (15,036) 140,734
Fines and forfeitures:
COUTE CASES 1vvereierrerrrisrrsieresssrrrsesesrnseeieasssssens 73,200 74,924 1,724 102,599
Local ordinance violations ......coecvvveemniverenvicens 500 2,275 1,775 2,367
Total fines and forfeitures ......ccoeveveenenns 73,700 77,199 3,499 104,966
Miscellaneous Revenues:
INtErest CarmiNgS voovvvrerereensierisiisserarssisrssreseenes 130,000 72,341 (57,659) 162,774
Sale of fixed 48818 iviiieiin e 5,000 20,200 15,200 31,743
Contributions and donations .......ceeervveeervrnens 0 3,638 3,638 2,371
Miscellaneous revVenuESs .....vicivvreierrriesrireeares 42,500 35,526 (6,974) 88,154
Total miscellanecous revenue ....ooccoeeeen.. 177,500 131,705 (45,795) 285,042
Total FEVENUE ,1ivveeveeeieeeee e 5,348,000 5,259,121 {38,879) 5,911,489
Expenditures:
General Government:
Legislative:
Personal SEIVICES wvvviviineinririrrercrreersesererennns 29,400 29,127 273 33,603
Operating expenditures .....cooecvrninaninnns 51,000 50,426 574 44,584
80,400 79,553 847 78,247
Executive:
Personal S8rvICES oo 275,600 268,982 6,618 264,218
Operating expenditures .....cooovvicininonns 36,200 33,392 2,808 31,684
311,800 302,374 9,426 295,902
Financial and Administrative:
Personal SEIVICES .vvvinmreiaiierneesineesssneenns 478,800 463,730 15,070 431,522
Operating expenditires .....ooovceeeneeeninnens 272,800 208,649 64,151 255,824
751,600 672,379 79,221 687,346
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND - (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 2001

Exhibit A-3

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Other General Government:
Personal SErVICES wviviviiiiniiiireeeernresrennenns 16,500 12,708 3,792 7,746
Operating expendituIes .......cccovrvreverreerienrans 555,700 538,752 16,948 105,832
Capital outlay .coooeeveveeviieniecicrecceecevrreneeane 32,000 23,995 8,005 136,884
Grants and aids ..., 15,300 15,229 71 15,200
619,500 590,684 28,816 265,662
Total general government .........ccceeeereee, 1,763,300 1,644,990 113,310 1,327,157
Public Safety:
Law Enforcement:
Personal SErviCes cooovecmiveie e 1,415,400 1,392,237 23,163 1,309,866
Operating expenditiiTes .......overvreesiareisenserens 162,300 136,913 25,387 193,862
Capital outlay ..o 75,800 40,046 35,754 68,757
1,653,500 1,569,196 84,304 1,572,485
Fire Protection:
Personal services v 684,000 676,723 7,277 611,732
Operating expendifures .......oooevevecvereinnns 115,400 97,324 18,076 93,932
Capital QUHAY .o 3,100 3,087 13 213,377
802,500 777,134 25,366 919,041
Building Inspection:
Personal SEIVICES .ooivveecereerireneseirresnrens 194,900 188,228 6,672 156,633
Operating expenditures ......c.oovrveeveninnoraenns 133,700 08,143 35,557 63,181
Capital outlay ..o 1,100 1,083 17 14,972
329,700 287,454 42,246 234,786
Total public safety ..o, 2,785,700 2,633,784 151,916 2,726,312
Transportation:
Road and Street Facilities:
Personal serviCes v 324,800 308,005 16,795 298,064
Operating expenditures ......ovoeeiieicieennns 296,100 243,757 52,343 257,989
Capital outlay .ooovevvnreiiecieciiisr s 488,000 283,677 204,323 134,654
Total transportation ............oveeveivenvnonn. 1,108,900 835,439 273,461 690,707
Culture/Recreation:
Parks:
Personal ServiCes ..ovvvemvieeeniieeeeeeeeee e 277,600 262,801 14,799 257,887
Operating expenditures .....occoevveeeieeeceenenn. 142,200 125,838 16,362 102,775
Capital outlay oo 112,700 67,730 44,970 36,655
532,500 456,369 76,131 397,317
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND - (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibit A-3

~ 2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
Recreation:
Personal services ....ccovvvvervvverernreormnrernnsersinn 233,000 217,162 15,838 207,368
Operating expendifires ......ocovreriervirrennereas 142,500 98,516 43,984 119,891
Capital 0utlay ...oovevecccvccve e ereinens 8,200 0 8,200 962
383,700 315,678 68,022 328,221
Total culture/recreation .........ccvveeevevnnne 916,200 772,047 144,153 725,538
Debt Service:
Principal retirement:
General government ...........ocevvneveevieinnencens 143,900 143,844 56 164,197
Public Safety...imererrieiecnniriniarnneisnnens 53,100 73,129 (20,029) 40,399
197,000 216,973 (19,973) 204,596
Interest and fiscal charges:
General government .........c.cocvereeercrninrnrenns 41,700 41,697 3 49,735
Public safety...c.ovinenceeceec e 10,300 10,224 76 9,262
52,000 51,921 79 58,997
Total debt serviCe vvvivreenninriiecrceeans 249,000 268,894 (19,894) 263,593
Total expenditures ....ooovivvnvecireiennens 6,823,100 6,155,154 667,946 5,733,307
Excess of revenue over (under)
eXPENdIures .....ccirvroreeenmreimriorrnerennan (1,475,100) (896,033) 579,067 178,182
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt.....ooovivviieee, 0 ] 0 204,204
Operating transfers from:
Water and Sewer Fund .......o.ooooieviivieriinne, 450,000 450,000 0 450,000
Solid Waste Fund ....c.corviricvenrvnisenisnsennnen, 250,000 250,000 0 240,000
Appropriated fund balance........cocvieniinincnnea, 958,300 0 (958,300) 0
Operating transfers to:
Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund ............. (2,800) (2,747) 53 (2,191)
Capital Projects Fund ..., (180,400) - (180,400) 0 0
Total financing sources (US€s) .covvvevrens.e, 1,475,100 516,853 (958.247) 892,013
Excess of revenue and other
sources over (under) expenditures
and Other USES ...ocovvreece e scnenins 0 (379,180) {379,180) 1,070,195
Fund balance, beginning of Year .........covvevievenn. 3,244,937 3,244,937 0 2,174,742
Fund balance, end of ¥ear ..o vvnicnnnerinnnienn, 3 3,244,937 2,865,757 (379,180) 3,244,937
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived from
specific taxes or other earmarked revenue sources. In the City of Holly
Hill, these earmarked revenues are from the following:

Stormwater Drainage - to account for stormwater fee revenue and the
expenditures of those revenues for the operation, maintenance and
improvement of the stormwater system,

Youth Center - to account for the receipt and expenditure of program
Sunds authorized by the Youth Center Advisory Board.

Community Redevelopment - to account for the receipt and expenditure
of property tax revenues from the tax increment financing district.

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant - to account for the receipt and
expenditure of program funds from the Local Law Enforcement Block
Grant program.

Community Development Block Grant - to account for the receipt and expenditure of
program funds from the Community Development Block Grant program.

Law Enforcement Expendable Trust Fund - to account for the restricted revenues received
Jrom the sale of confiscated property and for the expenditure of the funds for restricted law
enforcement purposes.









COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Stormwater Youth Community
Drainage Center Redevelopment
Assets:
QST e er e tes e te e e et ir e st r e aae s n e e r v rate 3 1,115,388 7,569 258,257
Accounts receivable - T8t e 34,073 0 0
Due from other funds ....oivvvcinecree e s s 766 0 0
Due from other gOVEIMMENES .........c.coovvveiirerssssirininnnsinnin 0 0 0
TOtA] BSEELS 1. veveeeeirrreeeeeeteeeisesiesreeessreseesareserssaeasnnannnse $ 1,150,227 7,569 258,257
Liabilities and Fund Equity:
Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ©.vvvesicrarisenrrereee s $ 20 0 570
Accrued Habilies .ivviiiiiieiisinnisrrrer i 5,079 0 3,306
DeferTed TEVEIUE .vivvriiirisirrerernrsrsrrnre e eesess ssnssasssssssnsneas 0 0 0
Due 10 other UNAS vicrvierivreceeceee e 0 0 0
Advance from General Fund ..o cniernneennneo 0 0 59,700
Total HabilItIES et recricee s e ee e e can v e 5,099 0 63,576
Fund Equity:
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Law Enforcement .....occciirrininnenmrrcnrereeinnmiecensiraninn 0 0 0
Stormwater draifage......cooerermrerieerreererr oot eaissn 1,145,128 0 0
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Undesignated (deficit) ..o 0 7,569 194,681
Total fund equity .o 1,145,128 7,569 194,681
Total liabilities and fund eqUity ..o $ 1,150,227 7,569 258,257
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Exhibit B-1

Local Law Comrnunity Law
Enforcement Development Enforcement Totals
Block Grant Block Grant Trust Fund 2002 2001
3,092 4,361 30,171 1,418,838 1,215,447
0 0 0 34,073 32,876
0 0 0 766 ]
0 1,885 3,810 5,695 0
3,092 6,246 33,981 1,459,372 1,248,323
291 0 161 1,042 10,098
0 0 0 8,385 9,967
3,106 0 0 3,106 2,315
1,395 6,246 0 7,641 0
0 0 0 59,700 59,700
4,792 6,246 161 79,874 82,080
] 0 33,820 33,820 49,982
0 0 0 1,145,128 995,168
{1,700) 0 0 200,550 121,093
(1,700) 0 33,820 1,379,498 1,166,243
3,092 6,246 33,981 1,459,372 1,248,323
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Stormwater Youth Community
Drainage Center Redevelopment
Revenue:
TAKES cvvvereereereerareeseesissssssstsnresneersnessessssasesaessasnsasnarsrnssrssnsnes 3 0 0 71,926
Intergovernmental ..o 0 0 132,006
Charges fOT SEIVICES ...viuvrveereereriaererireeserereseseresmsrsssarosmsesssenns 415,546 240 0
MISCEILATIEOUS 1ovvivirirresiiresieisrererssrererssresarsssesnesrsseesrsiaesinsasas 17,664 3,824 3,214
Total TEVENUE .ooviiii i crrnrrirernreires s serenserssmseaeens 433,210 4,064 207,146
Expenditures:
Current;
PUDLIC SBIEEY c1viveeerrireeer e e vt n e 0 0 0
Physical envIronment ........cceerrrerrvrerenrersnevesrenisimerse, 936,195 0 0
ECOROMUC ENVIFOTIMIENL 1vvueireesecrenasiesnssiesnccreesenssssnsessseseees 0 0 130,539
TTanSPOTHAtION ...ovivverree e see st sesss s s er s 0 0 0
Culture/recreation ....ccccriviier i senses 0 0 0
Total expenditires ..o 936,195 0 130,539
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures ............ (502,985) 4,064 76,607
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debtl......cccvvvci i 652,945 0 0
Operating transfers from General fund ... 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (USes) .....ccocceeciininen 652,945 0 0
Excess of revenue and other sources
over {under) expenditures and other Uses ........c..c.o.... _ 149,960 4,064 76,607
Fund balances, beginning of Year ... 995,168 3,505 118,074
Fund balances, end of year .....ccoovoecinncniinini e % 1,145,128 7,569 194,681
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Exhibit B-2

Local Law Community Law
Enforcement Development Enforcement Totals
Block Grant Block Grant Trust Fund 2002 2001

0 0 0 71,926 71,960

23,934 12,000 3,810 171,750 176,550

0 0 0 415,786 376,070

197 0 9,968 34,867 70,365

24,131 12,000 13,778 694,329 694,945
28,092 0 29,940 58,032 21,801

0 0 0 936,195 610,272

0 0 0 130,539 82,715

0 12,000 0 12,000 0

0 0 0 0 133

28,092 12,000 28,940 1,136,766 714,921
(3,961) 0 (16,162) (442,437) (19,976)

0 0 0 652,945 254,562

2,747 0 0 2,747 2,191

2,747 0 0 655,692 256,753
(1,214) 0 (16,162) 213,255 236,777

(486) 0 49,982 1,166,243 929,466

(1,700 0 33,820 1,379,498 1,166,243
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
Stormwater Drainage

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenue:
Taxes:
Current ad valorem taXeS ..oouerrevarsenesereresierieesenses 9 0 0 0
Intergovemmental Revenue: N
Federal Srants ....ooveiiemeeronimrsme e ssons 0 0 0
Shared revenues from other local units ......oecvcreee 0 0 0
Charges for Services:
Physical environment .......cccevvreeivm s 417,000 415,546 {1,454)
Culture/recteation. .. e ese e 0 0 0
Miscellaneous:
INLETESt CAIMIIMES .ovviiieerieinerree s arenr e sraets s srsesennens 30,000 17,664 (12,336)
Fines and forfeitures ...coriennrversmorcrinevecsecrenns 0 0 0
Contributions and donations ......ce.eceevncnionnriens 0 0 0
TOtal TEVENUE L1vvrirereecrercre e sicrene st nisns e 447,000 433,210 (13,790)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety:
Operating expenditures ... 0 0 0
Capital outlay.....cociinn e 0 0 0
Physical Environment:
Personal Services ..o 138,900 133,572 5,328
Operating expenditures ... iciicsii e 109,200 19,033 90,165
Capital outlay.......ocovirneri e 2,601,000 783,588 1,817,412
Economic Environment:
Personal SErvICes ..ot 0 0 0
Operating expenditures ... 0 0 0
Transportation:
Capital outlay ..o, G 0 0
Culture/Recreation:
Capital oUlay ..o 0 0 ‘ 0
Total expenditures ..o 2,849,100 936,195 1,912,905
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures ..... (2,402,100) {502,985} 1,899,115
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of [ong-term debt.....cov.merioreeerisinsenseinnienns 2,402,100 652,945 (1,749,155)
Operating transfers from General fund......c.cooovnnen, 0 0 0
Approprated fund balance......coieeiicrnienie s 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (Uses) ....cooevevrenne 2,402,100 652,945 (1,749,155)
Excess of revenue and other sources over
{under) expenditures and other Uses ........ccrvcrens 0 149,960 149,960
Fund balances, beginning of year ... vinniveneicnninnnns 995,168 995,168 0
Fund balances, end of YEar ......ccvveevermenrveenereeseseee s $ 995,168 1,145,128 149,960
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Exhibit B-3

Page 1 of 3
Youth Center Community Redevelopment
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
0 0 0 71,900 71,926 26

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 132,000 132,006 6

0 0 0 0 0 0
300 240 (60) 0 0 0
0 0 0 3,000 4,485 1,485

0 0 0 0 0 0
3,300 3,824 524 100 (1,271) (1,371)
3,600 4,064 464 207,000 207,146 146
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 O 0 104,600 81,939 22,061

0 0 0 178,000 48,600 129,400

0 0 0 v 0 0
3,600 0 3,600 0 0 0
3,600 0 3,600 282,000 130,539 151,461
0 4,064 4,064 (75,000) 76,607 151,607

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 75,000 0 (75,000)
0 0 0 75,000 , 0 {75,000}

0 4,064 4,064 0 76,607 76,607
3,505 3,505 0 118,074 118,074 0
3,505 7,569 4.064 118,074 194,681 76,607
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenue:
Taxes:
Current ad valorem {axes ..o oviinienioncomeienerseenes 0 0 0
Intergovernmental Revenue: '
Federal grants .....ccveomereoeecimsnsennees 26,900 23,934 (2,966)
Shared revenues from other local units ...oceevnvenenen. 0 0 0
Charges for Services:
Physical environment ........ocvevveeeirvnrrsrsnineeesreesesnnses 0 0 0
CUlture/TECTEAtION. . ...coeireirs i s s ssss s snsassanes 0 0 0
Miscellaneous:
Interest CAMINES ...oovii v 200 197 {3
Fines and forfeIflres ...o..ovnrvnvervicreencomicsrncsessamsasenens 0 ¢ 0
Contributions and donations ........cceeomnin e 0 0 0
Total TEVENUE .ot e ss s snre s 27,100 24,131 (2,969)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety:
Operating expendifiles ... e 14,900 15,641 (741)
Capital oUHAY...ocvcirrrercrr e cerenresrnes e reas 15,000 12,451 2,549
Physical Environment:
Personal SErviCes ..vierimmecanmieseiermienrie 0 0 0
Operating expendifires .......cooovceiernecnrenerencees 0 0 0
Capital outlay.....cvvvceni e 0 0 0
Economic Environment:

Personal SETVICES v 0 0 0

Operating expenditires ..o v rreeesraesnicesareres 0 0 0
Transportation:

Capital QUHAY v 0 0 0
Culture/Recreation:

Capital outlay oo 0 0 0
Total expenditures ... 29,900 28,092 1,808
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures (2,800) {3,961) (1,161)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt. ..o 0 O 0
Operating transfers from General fund.........corvivneinns 2,800 2,747 (53)
Appropriated fund balance......cmminn.. 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (USes) -...ervevvvees 2,300 2,747 (53)
Excess of revenue and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses ........ccvvene. 0 (1,214} (1,214)
Fund balances, beginning of year ....cccovevvmvnccnninnnnens (486) (486) 0
Fund balances, end of YEAr . oot (486) (1,700) (1,214)




Community Development Block Grant

Exhibit B-3
Page 2 of 3

Law Enforcement Trust Fund

Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
0 0 0 0 ] 0
105,700 12,000 (93,700) 3,500 3,810 310
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 200 258 58
0 0 0 9,000 9,710 710
0 0 0 0 0 0
105,700 12,000 {93,700 12,700 13,778 1,078
0 0 0 30,400 28,340 (2,060}
G 0 0 1,600 1,600 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 ] 0
12,000 12,000 0 0 0 0
93,700 0 (93,700} 0 0 0
105,700 12,000 (53,700) 32,000 29,940 (2,060}
0 0 0 {19,300} {16,162) 3,138
0 0 0 0 ] 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 15,300 0 (18,300)
0 0 0 19,300 0 (19,300
0 0 0 0 {16,162) (16,162)
0 0 0 49,982 49,982 0
0 0 0 49982 33,820 (16,162)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibit B-3
Page 3 of 3

Totals - All Funds

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual Unfavorable)
Revenue:
Taxes:
Current ad valorem taxes .o 8 71,900 71,926 26
intergovernmental Revenue:
Federal Grants ..o ssarsaresens 136,100 39,744 (96,356)
Shared revenues from other local units .....vvvverererienns 132,000 132,006 6
Charges for Services:
Physical environment ..o, 417,000 415,546 {1,454}
Culure/recrealion. ... ererressrcssse s eveesasseerees 300 240 {60}
Miscellaneous:
Interest SaMmings .....occccoverrrreerieciesiet et e rien e 33,400 22,604 (10,796}
Fines and forfeittires ... mirererseseenne e 9,000 9,710 710
Contributions and donations ....cceierererirsinresisrnecene 3,400 2,553 (847)
TOtal FEVENUE vovvvirivr e ereerenresnsersenessressessreenrenee 803,100 694,329 (108,771)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety:
Operating expendifires ...vvmrvcnicinennn, 45,300 43,981 {1,319}
Capital oUtlay....coviecciccieeiee e 16,600 14,051 (2,549)
Physical Environment:
Personal SEIVICES ottt et e 138,900 133,572 (5,328)
Operating expenditures .........ooeceernreireernsencerneenns 109,200 19,035 {90,165
Capital QUEIAY.....cv e reeerearree s 2,601,000 783,588  (1,817,412)
Economic Environment:
Personal Services ..vvvrveorveceeee v v 104,000 81,939 (22,061)
Operating expenditiles ..o e 178,000 48,600 (129,400)
Transportation:
Capital QUHAY ..ivve e rrrran s sen s rnrares 12,000 12,000 0
Culture/Recreation:
Capital QUEIAY ..o s ees 97,300 0 (87,300)
Total expenditures ..o incccnieneesrenscee e 3,302,300 1,136,766  (2,165,534)
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures ..... (2,499,200) {442,437y 2,056,763
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt.....c.ocincrinniicinnnieenn 2,402,100 652,945  (1,749,155)
Operating transfers from General fund.......ccoeorvncrenenn. 2,800 2,747 (53)
Appropriated fund balance......cccoooiieiiinices 94,300 0 {94,300}
Total other financing sources {uses) .....corerennn. 2,499,200 655,692  (1,843,508)
Excess of revenue and other sources over
{under) expenditures and other uses ......ccoiveeenne, 0 213,255 213,255
Fund balances, beginning of year .......coccoooiiivnmrrnnnnes 1,166,243 1,166,243 0
Fund balances, end of year ......coevcvccinnincniicnnivnncenene. 31,166,243 1,379,498 213,255
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are created to account for the financial resources
to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities by
a governmental unit except those financed by proprietary funds. In the
City of Holly Hill, these funds are used to account for the construction of
a multipurpose building adjacent to City Hall and certain roadway median
improvements financed in part from the proceeds ot the City’s Utility
Service Tax Revenue Bond, Series 19984.






COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS Exhibit C-1
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

September 30, 2002 and 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

2002 2001
Assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVALETIES .o.ovvvoiiiircs i e st sse et seaseeeennrana, b3 284,322 195,336
Due from other governments ......ooooveevviviieceeeeeererersreees ettt aes 0 6,778
TOtAL ASSEES 11viivriiertecine ettt rrrers e et e st e ee e e st s e e s emnaen 3 284322 202,114
Liabilities and Fund Equity:
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE _...ooiirririvninne ettt esr e st sberesssserbenseaes 3 92,464 0
Fund Equity:
Fund balance:
Reserved for capital PrOJECES .o iorir st astesssrsseese e esenen 191,858 202,114
Unreserved:
URAESIENATE ...oveoieviiee ettt s st s s et st nenn 0 0
Total fnd EQUILY vovevieecccir et e s rane e 191,858 202,114
Total liabilities and fund @QUILY oot s b 284,322 202,114
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 2001
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibit C-2

2002 2001
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenue:
Intergovemmental:
SHALE BLANES 1vveerirrreereerrinrereesrmrereresneereecmneseenns $ 93,300 0 {93,300) 67,778
Miscellaneous: :
Contributions and donations .........oeeeveerveniees 150,000 150,000 0 0
Interest €arMinNgs .ccovvvvrvveerinise v 0 3,641 3,641 5,045
Total TEVENUE ..oocvveeeicre s 243,300 153,641 {89,659) 72,823
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Other General Government ......occovceveenrecceenns 186,600 0 186,600 0
Culture/recreation ....ovievveerirrcrricrerrrecrnrarnaces 387,100 344,297 42,803 122,062
Total expenditures ....cccvveviicnniiiinns 573,700 344,297 229,403 122,062
Excess of revenue over (under)
eXPERAIUIES 11oeererc s (330,400) {190,656) 139,744 (49,239)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers from:
General Fund ..o 180,400 180,400 0 0
Community Development Block Grant Fund . 0 0 0 G
Solid Waste Fund ......ooeeevnevrvenicrcnnicieenne 0 0 0 0
Appropriated fund balance ... 150,000 0 {150,000) 0
Total financing sources (uses) ......... s 330,400 180,400 {150,000) 0
Excess of revenue and other
sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses .................. 0 (10,256) (10,256) (49,239)
Fund balance, beginning of year..........cccoecooeen. 202,114 202,114 0 251,333
Fund balance, end of year ... $ 202,114 191,858 {10,256) 202,114
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are established to account for the financing of self-
supporting municipal activities which render services on a user charge
basis to the general public.

The significant characteristic of an Enterprise Fund is that the accounting
system makes it possible to determine whether the activity is operated at
a profit or loss. All reports of Enterprise Funds are self-contained. In this
way, creditors, legislators, and the general public can evaluate the
performance of the municipal enterprise on the same basis as
investor-owned enterprises in the same industry.

In the City of Holly Hill, the enterprise funds consist of the following:

Water and Sewer System - to account for the fiscal activities of the City’s
water and sewer treatment, distribution and collection systems as well as
the funding and payment of related debt.

Solid Waste - to account for the fiscal activities of the City’s solid waste
collection systems as well as the funding and payment of related debt.









COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Water
and Sewer Solid Totals
Utility Waste 2002 2001
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ..., 2,976,327 816,460 3,792,787 3,557,591
TOVESHNIENIS ©vevvirerrririreemseesscsrersssrnssssaninessesans 0 0] 0 245,513
Accounts receivable-net........cccocinniniiinnin, 242 059 100,598 342,657 356,715
Accrued interest receivable ....ciiiiiinnin 0 0 0 3,872
Due from other funds .....coooevvevrcenrrcenrresinens 3,729 0 3,729 0
Due from other GOVErnmEnts ....ooveernrienneenne 0 0 0 534
Prepaid eXpenses . renininiiiiieiraranien, 7,395 1,165 8,560 10,532
Total CUrTEnt ASSES vuvrerrrerererareererersacane 3,229,510 918,223 4,147,733 4,174,757
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Sinking and Reserve Funds .........ocoiviinnne 168,469 0 168,469 209,769
Renewal and Replacement Fund ..o 702,044 0 702,044 410,237
Restricted Impact Fees .o, 754,519 0 754,519 236,827
Customer deposits ..o 0 0 0 19,119
1,625,032 0 1,625,032 875,952
Accounts and notes receivable ..ovvvvvieririennens 394,051 0 364,051 10,757
Total restricted asSets .oveevevereieierecenarnans 2,019,083 0 2,019,083 886,709
Property, Plant and Equipment:
a0 e 154,739 0 154,739 154,739
Buildings cooooeeececeneire e 10,800,389 54,651 10,855,040 10,855,040
Improvements other than buildings ............... 11,228,812 0 11,228,812 11,171,187
Machinery and equipment .......ccvivreiveninienns 6,354,805 716,738 7,071,543 6,903,865
28,538,745 771,389 29,310,134 29,084,831
Less: accumulated depreciation .....covvieiiens (10,777,246) {728,089) (11,505,335) (10,750,394)
17,761,499 43,300 17,804,799 18,334,437
Construction in Progress ..o 232,786 0 232,786 318,770
Net property, plant
and eqUIPMEnt....ocoiicin 17,994,285 43,300 18,037,585 18,653,207
Other Assets:
Unamortized bond issuance costs ..o 267,081 0 267,081 226,676
Total 8SS8E5 1vrericecriniirre e iree s sseessaeree e 23,509,959 961,523 24,471,432 23,941,349
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Exhibit D-1

Water
and Sewer Solid Totals
Utility Waste 2002 2001
Liabilities and Fund Equity:
Current Liabilities (payable from current
assets):
Accounts payable ... 31,892 88,073 119,965 135,644
Accrued Habiliies .o rvnecesnmneinreerne 35,239 1,508 36,747 53,779
Due to ofher funds ...ovvveivreeiiererrervserireereenn 0 0 0 238,161
Total current liabilities (payable
from current assets) ..ocveceeeireercerrrrarnarenn 67,131 89,581 156,712 427,584
Current Liabilities (payable from
restricted assets):
Accounts payable ....coevveevrevniene e 7,595 0 7,595 3,756
Accrued liabilities .o, 171,282 0 171,282 0
Customer deposits ...cveiiniieniniceereninnseens 581,583 0 581,583 551,314
Revenue bonds payable .o, 0 0 0 330,000
Notes payable ..o, 89,956 0 89,956 0
Total current liabilities (payable
from restricted assets) ..ooocecvrieicerceereenens 850,416 0 850,416 885,070
Long-Term Debt:
Revenue bonds payable-net ..., 12,481,775 0 12,481,775 12,502,062
Notes payable ..o, 2,198,777 0 2,198,777 2,416,728
Total Iong-term debt ...cccovvvercrrionninas 14,680,552 0 14,680,552 14,918,790
Other Liabilities:
Obligation for compensated absences ............ 149,553 1,438 150,991 117,973
Total liabilities .ovvvveeeecicieceeccr e, 15,747,652 91,019 15,838,671 16,349,419
Fund Equity:
Retained Earnings:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt oo 3,313,732 43,300 3,357,032 3,352,724
Restricted for renewal and
replacement ..o.vvvvivrverreeeemierrerrasrirerreesses 694,449 0 694,449 410,237
Restricted for debt service ..oooorivvnnnniienn 295,713 0 295,713 77,059
Unrestricted ..o ceeeecrers e 3,458,413 827,204 4,285,617 3,751,910
Total fund eqUILY .vecvrrerorecerrecrerecreriaenne: 7,762,307 870,504 8,632,811 7,591,930
Total liabilities and fund equity .....c.o..... 23,509,959 961,523 24,471,482 23,941,349
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibit D-2

Water
and Sewer Solid Totals
Utility Waste 2002 2001
Operating Revenue: :
Charges for Services:
Water sales .ooveniiniiininns v ettt 1,872,940 0 1,872,940 1,840,639
SeWer CHATEES .oovveveirmrrervre et 1,954,986 0 1,954,986 1,904,332
Connections, service, and cut-off charges ...... 57,697 0 57,697 33,270
Fire hydrant rental ....oovereroiiiiriiiiinnn, 8,340 0 8,340 10,107
Other ChHATZES vvvveeerrrrrvee i e 10,849 0 10,849 7,867
Waste disposal charges .....oooveivniiininniinns 0 1,482,494 1,482,494 1,378,743
Total operating revenue ........vevsvsinnens 3,904,812 1,482,494 5,387,306 5,174,958
Operating Expenses:
Personal SEIVICES vuvvvivciiinreisisissrrrsieseriieenersianane 904,700 39,547 044,247 866,396
Materials and supplies ......cvvvirrisninennn 182,993 768 183,761 181,763
UHIHES ©eovveerrieecnrenrenceremnererraraeneeseeraesnebrassesarsees 247,671 155 247,826 244,892
Maintenance and repairs ......o.oceciieeiiiieniciceins 103,670 474 104,144 105,175
Contractual SEIVICES ...vveorrrroeeciemirimiecieinee e 212,624 1,056,419 1,269,043 1,052,614
Other BXPENISES vovvvveeriareererever oo csiesisiecsiiss s 22,284 445 22,729 45,015
Bad debis .oieeiiviveeinrieceerie e seecesnresn e senseeenens 2,677 1,178 3,855 13,873
Depreciation ..o 780,725 9,522 790,247 777,830
Total operating expenses ... 2,457,344 1,108,508 3,565,852 3,287,558
Total operating iNCoIme .....covvvrverinrninns 1,447,468 373,986 1,821,454 1,887,400
Noneperating Revenue (Expenses):
Interest €armNgGS ....oovvvvurvirerseminccnecniceen, 85,157 17,172 102,329 225,176
Operating grant - federal ... 0 0 0 1,110
Other income (EXPEnSEs) voovvvivmrnniicrrresnnanen, (1,823) 6,104 4,281 96,140
INterest EXPENSE .ovvvivreeeeire s smemsnee e, {689,689) 0 (689,689) (865,326)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) . {606,355) 23,276 (583,079) (542,900)
Net income before operating transfers ... 841,113 397,262 1,238,375 1,344,500
Operating Transfers:
Transfer to General Fund ... (450,000) {250,000) {700,000) {690,000)
Total operating transfers .......cvveiiin (450,000} (250,000) (700,000} {690,000)
Net income (1o88) oovvvvnnerrericnneen, 391,113 147,262 538,375 654,500
Capital contributions........coocomiinnnine, 502,506 0 502,506 105,665
Net increase in retained earnings............ 893,619 147,262 1,040,881 760,165
Retained earnings, beginning of year ................... 6,868,688 723,242 7,591,930 6,831,765
Retained earnings, end of year ..., 7,762,307 870,504 8,632,811 7,591,930
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Exhibit D-3

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS Page 1 of 2
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001
_ CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
Water
and Sewer Solid Totals
Utility Waste 2002 2001
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: :
Cash received from CUStOMETS. cvvvevricvniiricnnienas b 3,586,904 1,461,969 5,048,873 5,141,484
Cash paid for personal services........covverrrrnunns - {(388,944) (35,319) (928,263) {850,097)
Cash paid to suppliers....ccovcevvrievcvisvenninrnnn. o {786,511) (1,296,605) (2,083,116) . (1,424,388)
Net cash provided by operating activities.. 1,911,449 126,045 2,037,494 2,866,999
Cash Flows From Noncapital and Related
Financing Activities: .
Nonoperating revenue (EXpenses) ....oceeevieevvnrens (1,823) 6,104 4,281 1,110
Operating transfers (OUL) uveeveveiescersiivecenrnees (450,000) {250,000} (700,000} (690,000)
Net cash provided by (used in} noncapital
and related financing activities ............... (451,823) (243,896) (695,719) (688,890)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Capital cONtributions .........cvvrereeerverserininrennsanns 502,506 0 502,506 105,665
Proceeds received on issuance of debt ...evvvonne 131,866 0 131,866 940,573
Debt reduction outlays ......ccccooceeeiecvnresniriinren (457,995) 0 {457,995) (310,000}
Deposit to escrow for advanced refunding ........ (258,988} (258,988) 0
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .. (173,496) (1,129) (174,625) (1,325,257)
Proceeds from sale of assets.....oooevvvveervirereeenne. 0 0 0 46,529
Interest paid ..o (451,977) 0 {451,977) (812,742)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities ................. {708,084) (1,129} (709,213) (1,355,232}
Investing Activities:
Sales and {acquisitions) of investments ............. 0 249,385 249,385 (238,161)
Interest received .ttt ee s 85,157 17,172 102,329 213,950
Net cash provided by investing activities.. 85,157 266,557 351,714 (24211)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. 836,699 147,577 984,276 798,666
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ...... 3,764,660 668,883 4,433,543 3,634,877
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year .......o.c...... 3 4,601,359 816,460 5,417,819 4,433,543
Reconciliation to Balance Sheet:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents............. $ 2,976,327 816,460 3,792,787 3,557,591
Restricted cash and cash equivalents................ 1,625,032 0 1,625,032 875,952
Total cash and cash equivalents................. A 4,601